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CONG BO THONG TIN PINH KY BAO CAO TAI CHINH
PERIODIC DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Kinh gwri/Te: Sé Giao dich Chirng khoan Ha Ni/ Hanoi Stock Exchange

Thuc hién quy dinh tai khoan 3 Piéu 14 Théng tu sé 96/2020/TT-BTC ngay
16/11/2020 ctia B6 Tai chinh huéng din céng bd théng tin trén thi trrdng chimg khodn,
CTCP BCG ENERGY thuc hién céng b théng tin béo céo tai chinh (BCTC) Riéng lé
va Hop nhit kiém toén nim 2024 véi S& Giao dich Chimg khoan Ha Ni nhu sau:

Pursuant to the provisions of Clause 3, Article 14 of Circular No. 96/2020/TT-
BTC dated November 16, 2020 of the Ministry of Finance guiding information
disclosure on the stock market, BCG Energy Joint Stock Company shall disclose the

2024 Audited Consolidated and Separate financial statements to the Hanoi Stock

Exchange as follows:

1. Tén to chire/ Organization name: Cong ty C6 phan BCG Energy

- Ma chung khoan/ Stock ticker: BGE

- Dia chi/ Address: LK10-21 duong Tran Quy Kién, Phuong Binh Trung Tay,
Thanh phé Thu Pirc, Thanh phé Hb Chi Minh, Viét Nam/ LK10-21 Tran Quy
Kien Street, Binh Trung Tay Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietham

- Dién thoai lién hé/Tel: (028) 62 680 680 Fax: (028) 629911 88

- Email: ir-becgenergy@bamboocap.com.vn Website: https://bcgenergy.com.vn/

2. Ni dung théng tin cong bo/ Disclosure of information
Bao cdo tai chinh Riéng 1¢ va Hop nhat kiém toan nam 2024/The 2024 Audited

Consolidated and Separate financial statements.

- Cac truong hop thudc dién phai giai trinh nguyén nhan/Cases that require

explanation:



+ T6 chirc kiém toan dua ra y kién khong phai 1a v kién chap nhan toan phan doi
v61 BCTC/ The audit organization has issued an opinion that is not an unqualified

opinion regarding the financial statements:

M Cd/Yes O Khong/No
Van ban gidi trinh trong truong hop tich ¢6/ Explanation document (if applicable):
M Cd/ Yes O Khéng/ No
+ Loi nhuén sau thué trong ki bao cao c¢é su chénh 1éch trude va sau kiém tosn tir
5% tr&r 18n, chuyén tir 16 sang 13i hodc nguoc lai (d6i véi BCTC duge kiém toan)/ Profit
after tax in the reporting period shows a variance of 5% or more before and after the

audit or shifts between profit and loss (for audited financial statements):

M Cé/Yes O Khéng/No
Van ban giai trinh trong truong hop tich c6/ Explanation document (if applicable):
M Cd/Yes O  Khoéng/No
+ Loi nhudn sau thué thu nhip doanh nghiép tai béo céo két qua kinh doanh cua
ky béo céo thay doi tir 10% trd 1én so v6i bao cdo cting ky nam trudc/ After-tax corporate
income profit in the reporting period changes by 10% or more compared to the same

period last year:

M Co/Yes O Khéng/No
Van ban giai trinh trong truéng hop tich cé/ Explanation document (if applicable):

M Cd/Yes ] Khéng/No
+ Loi nhudn sau thué trong ky bdo céo bi 15, chuyén tir 13i & bao cdo ciing ky nam
trudc sang 16 & ky nay hodc nguoc lai/ After-tax profit in the reporting period shows a

loss, shifting from profit in the same period last year to a loss this period, or vice versa:

M Co/Yes O Khong/No
Vian ban giai trinh trong truong hop tich co/Explanation document (if applicable):
B Co/Yes O Khéng/No

Thong tin nay da dugce cong bo trén trang thong tin dién tr ciia cong ty tai duong
din:  https://bcgenergy.com.vn/quan-he-nha-dau-tu/cong-bo-thong-tin/2025/  This
information was  published on the company's website at the link:

https://bcgenergy.com.vn/quan-he-nha-dau-tu/cong-bo-thong-tin/2025
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Chiing t6i cam két céc thong tin cong b trén day la diing su that va hoan toan
chiu trach nhiém trudc phap ludt vé ndi dung cic thong tin da cong bd/ We declare that
all information provided in this paper is true and accurate; we shall be legally
responsible for any misrepresentation.

Tai liéu dinh kém/ PAI DIEN TO CHUC/
Attached documents: ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE
-BCTC riéng 1& va Hop NGUOI UQCBTT/

nhit kiém toan nam INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
2024/ The 2024 Audited REPRESENTATIVE
Financial statements PHO TONG GIAM POC/
(separate and DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR
consolidated)

- Van ban Giai trinh két

qua kinh doanh va y

kién ngoai trir BCTC

kiém toan nam 2024/
Explanation of Business
Performance and
Qualified Opinion in the
2024 Audited Financial
Statements
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2024

The Board of Management has the honor of submitting this report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of BCG Energy JSC and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as "the Group") for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2024.

1. Business highlights

BCG Energy Joint Stock Company (Hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) operates under the Business
registration certificate No. 0314445458 dated June 08, 2017 issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment of HCMC, and being amended to the 18th ones dated June 06, 2025 regarding the change of head
office address.

The Company's shares have been officially traded on the Unlisted Public Company Market with the stock code
BGE since July 31. 2024 according to Decision No. 836/QD-SGDHN dated July 23, 2024 of the Hanoi Stock
Exchange on approval of trading registration and Notice No. 3449/TB-SGDHN dated July 24, 2024 on
notification of the first trading day of the Company's registered shares.

Structure of ownership: Joint Stock Company.

Business sectors: Providing management consulting services.

English name: BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY.

Short name: BCG ENERGY.

Security code: BGE.

Head office: LK10-21, Tran Quy Kien Street, Binh Trung Tay Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

2. Financial position and results of operation

The Group's consolidated financial position and results of operation in the year are presented in the attached
consolidated financial statements.

3. Board of Directors, Board of Supervision, Board of Management and Chief Accountant

Board of Directors, Board of Supervision, Board of Management and Chief Accountant holding offfice in the year
and to the reporting date include:

Board of Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Siong, Leonard Chairman (Appointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam Chairman (Disappointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
Mr.  Pham Minh Tuan Deputy Chairman
Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien Deputy Chairman
(*) Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh Deputy Chairman (Appointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
Mr. Nguyen Trung Truc Independent member (Appointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
(*) Mr. Le Thanh Tung Member
(*) Ms. Nguyen Thi Loan Member
Board of Supervision
Mr. Deong Hai Ha Head supervision board
Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong Deputy Head supervision board
(*) Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen Member (Appointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
Mr. Tan Bo Quan Andy Member (Disappointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

3. Board of Directors, Board of Supervision, Board of Management and Chief Accountant (cont.)

Board of Management and Chief Accountant

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan General Director
Ms. Pham Nguyen Ngoc Thuong Deputy General Director
Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam Deputy General Director (Appointed since Mar. 20, 2024)
Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet Deputy General Director (Appointed since Sep. 01, 2024)
Mr. Pham Le Quang Deputy General Director (Appointed since Nov. 15, 2024)

(*) Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh Deputy General Director (Appointed since Sep. 01, 2024)
Ms. Vu Van Ngoc Nicki Deputy General Director (Disappointed since Sep. 01, 2024)
Mr. Luu Khanh Truong Chief Accountant

Legal representative of the Company in the period and to the reporting date is:

Mr. Ng Wee Siong, Leonard Chairman (from Apr. 17, 2024 until now)
Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam Chairman (to Apr. 16, 2024)
Mr. Pham Minh Tuan General Director

(*) These members submitted their resignations on March 11 and 12, 2025 and are awaiting approval from the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

. Auditor

Moore AISC Auditing and Informatics Services Company Limited has been appointed as an independent auditor
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

. Statement of the Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024 as well as its
consolidated results of operation and consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. In
order to prepare these consolidated financial statements, the Board of Management has considered and complied
with the following matters:

- Selected the appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently;

- Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared on a going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Group and that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in compliance with the registered accounting policies stated in the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements. The Board of Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and thus taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

6. Approval of the Financial Statements

In the opinion of the Board of Management, the consolidated financial statements consisting of balance sheet as at
Dec. 31, 2024, consolidated income statement, cash flow statement and notes to the consolidated financial
statements enclosed with this report give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as well as itsconsolidated operating results and consolidated cash flows for the fiscal year ended December 31,

2024,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the
Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System.

inh City, July 18, 2025

alf of the Board of Management

S
[
?’Hinrmﬁh Tuan

General Director
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kel MOORE AlSC i
3B9A Dien Bien Phu Street, Ward 4

District 3, Ho Chi Minh City
Viet Nam

T (8428) 38329129
F (8428) 3834 2957
E info@aisc.coman

www.aisc.com.vn

No.: B0625207-HN/MOORE AISC-DN7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO: SHAREHOLDERS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BCG Energy Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as
"the Company") and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as "the Group") consisting of consolidated balance sheet as at
December 31, 2024, consolidated income statement, consolidated cash flow statement for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2024 and Notes to the consolidated financial statements as set out on page 07 to page 60 which were prepared on July 18,
2025.

Responsibility of the Board of Management

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Syslem and other
statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements and also for the
internal control that the Board of Management considers necessary for the preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error.

Responsibility of the Auditor

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Vietnamese Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of
Management as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

I. Regarding the deposits for purchasing shares, advances, and business cooperation as explained in the consolidated
financial statements, we found the following issues:

+ The receivable from the deposit for purchasing shares as at December 31, 2024 is VND 39.000,000,000 (item V.4.(iii))
between BCG Vinh Long JSC (a subsidiary) and Tracodi Construction Group JSC (former name: Industrial Development
and Transport [nvestment JSC).

+ Advances arising at BCG Dien Bien Dong Wind Power JSC and Aton JSC (subsidiaries) to Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet
(Deputy General Director of BCG Energy JSC) with a value of VND 34.99 billion (item V.4.(iv)) on May 24, 2024 and
June 29, 2024, These advances were paid from the company's bank account immediately after BCG Energy JSC and other

shareholders contributed capital to these two subsidiaries;

Branch in Ha Noi: 6th floor, 36 Hoa Binh 4 Str., Minh Khai Ward, Hal Ba Trung Dist., Ha Noi City T:(84.24) 3782 0045  F:(84.24)37820048  E: hanci@aisc.com.vn
Branch in Da Nang: 350 Hai Phong Str., Chinh Gian Ward, Thanh Khe Dist., Da Nang City T (84.236) 3747619 F:(B4.236) 3747620  E: danfngi@aisc.com.vn
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT.)

Basis for qualified opinion (cont.)

+ Receivables from the Business Cooperation Contract as at December 31, 2024 are VND 3,210,481,000,000 (item V.4.(v))
between a number of subsidiaries in the Group and business cooperation partners to invest in developing wind power, waste
incineration and waste treatment projects.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the signing of the contracts/deposit agreements for /
share purchases, the progress of using BCC cash flow of the partners, the purpose of using the advance payment of Mr. Dang \-_ﬁ?’
Dinh Quyet and the ability to recover from these deposits, advances, and BCC. The total value of the above items is VND
3.,284.471,000,000, accounting for 17.9% of the total assets of the Group. KIEM

In addition, we were unable to obtain any documents showing that the business cooperation transaction between BCG Thanh
Hoa Energy JSC (a subsidiary) and Tam Sinh Nghia Investment - Development JSC (an Associate), the deposit for share ;;;'\f
purchases and the advance payment mentioned above were officially approved by the Board of Directors of these companiesﬁ
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter and current laws. This may affect the validity of the business cooperation
transactions, the deposit for share purchases and the advance payment recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, we are unable to determine the necessary adjustments to the receivables from deposits, advances, and business

coopetation amounts mentioned above as well as other impacts (if any) on other items on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

2. As of the date of this report, we have not received full confirmation letters for the following items:

Items Balance as at December 31, 2024

Prepayments to suppliers VND 142,937,642,745 Noted in item V.3
Trade payables VND 467,527,982.231 Noted in item V.15
Other payables VND 974,721,322,617 Noted in item V.17

Other alternative audit procedures also did not provide us with a basis to evaluate the completeness of these liabilities and
their effects on other items in the consolidated financial statements.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter specified in paragraph "Basis for qualified opinion", the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the consolidated financial position of BCG Energy
Joint Stock Company and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2024 as well as the consolidated results of its operation and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System and other statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of matter
Without qualifying our opinion as mentioned above, we would like to draw your attention about:

- As noted in item VIIL1c of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements on the electricity purchase price that BCG
Vinh Long Joint Stock Company and Clean Energy Vision Development Joint Stock Company (two subsidiaries) are entitled
to under Decision 13/2020/QD-TTg dated April 06, 2020 for the VNECO Vinh Long Solar Power Plant project and Phu My
Solar Power Plant projects with commercial operation date before December 31, 2020.

- As noted in item V.4(v.2) of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, the receivables from the Business
Cooperation Contract (BCC) as at December 31, 2024 amounted to VND 3,093, 167.000,000 between certain Subsidiaries in
the Group and BCC partners for investment in developing wind power, waste incineration for electricity generation and

waste treatment projects. The above business cooperation transactions were additionally approved in June 2025 by the Board
of Members/Board of Directors of certain Subsidiaries as prescribed.

Page 3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT.)

Emphasis of matter (cont.)

- As of December 31, 2024, the Group has investments in associates (ifem V.10.2d - VND 474,039,231,481), loan
receivables (item V.5 - VND 56,220,000,000) and receivables from business cooperation (item V.4(v.1) - VND
300,000,000.000) with a total carrying value of VND 830,259,231,481. The Group's Board of Management has prudent]yf___ﬁ
recognized losses for the entire value of investments in joint ventures and associates; made a 100% provision for the above 513l

loan and business cooperation receivables according to the accounting principles on impairment and recoverability E
- & - ¥ : |

assessment. The specific amount of loss may vary depending on actual circumstances. TNH
N VA

Other matters TIN HC

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2024 were audited by another auditor ORE,
and another audit firm. The auditors expressed an unqualified opinion with emphasis of opinion on these consolidated o
financial statements on February 29, 2024, -
The predecessor auditor emphasized that as at December 31, 2023, Clean Energy Vision Development Joint Stock Company
(a subsidiary) recorded short-term trade receivables from the Electricity Trading Company under Vietnam Electricity Group
("EVN") with total value of VND 54,407,098,920, related to electricity revenue generated from the capacity of 83.10 MWp
of Phu My 1 Solar Power - Phase 2 and the capacity of 31.10 MWp of Phu My 3 Solar Power - Phase 2, estimated according

to the ceiling unit price prescribed in Decision No. 21/QD-BTC dated January 7, 2023.

As at December 31, 2024, the balance of this short-term trade receivables is VND 153,327,855.719 (in item V.2 of the
consolidated financial statements). As at the date of this report, Clean Energy Vision Development Joint Stock Company has
signed amended agreements to adjust the official electricity price for the above electricity output with EVN (in item X.2 of
the consolidated financial statements on events after the end of the fiscal year). Accordingly, the receivables from estimated
revenue at the ceiling price as at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2024 compared to the official price agreed with
EWVN are appropriate.

Ha Chi Minh City, July 18, 2025 !
For and on behalf of ;

HA NGUYEN HOANG NHAN

Deputy General Director Auditor
Certificate of Audit Practice Registration Certificate of Audit Practice Registration
No.: 0111-2023-005-1 No: 5908-2023-005-1
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at December 31, 2024

Form B 01 - DN/HN

Unit: VND

IL

1118

B et B e

1.

]

o

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

. Cash
. Cash equivalents

Short-term financial investments

. Held-to-maturity investments

Short-term receivables
Short-term trade receivables
Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Short-term loan receivables
Other short-term receivables
Provision for doubtful debts

Inventories

. Inventories

Other current assets
Short-term prepaid expenses
Deductible VAT

The notes to the consolidated financial statements jorm an integral part af this report

Code

100

110
111
112

120
123

130
131
132
135
136
137

140
141

150
151
152

Notes

V.1

V.10.1

V.2a
V.3
V.5a
V.da
V.9

V.12a

Dec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

7,615,304,283,488 7,578,000,812,167
221,563,900,097 324,257,433,673
183,549,150,657 74.531,880.865
38,014,749,440 249,725,552,808
38,980,002,315 39,180,002,315
38,980.,002,315 39,180,002,315
7,302,948,504,670 7,159,041,969,387
656,444,229.847 317,900,737.762
837,719,951.,497 1,108,502,551,579
509,202,506,902 109,645,483,975
5,773,210,330,931 5,622,993,196.071
(473.628,514,507) =
1,714,322,303 813,889,293
1,714,322.303 §13,889.293
50,097,554,103 54,707,517.499
9,777,249,322 8,452,493,099
40,320,304,781 46,255,024.400

Page 7

s T |

€3y .-

e

0wy



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at December 31, 2024

Form B 01 - DN/HN

Unit: VND

ASSETS

B. LONG-TERM ASSETS

I. Long-term receivables
1. Long-term trade receivables
2. Long-term loan receivables
3. Other long-term receivables

II. Fixed assets

1. Tangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Aceumulated depreciation
2. Finance lease assets

- Cost

- Accumulated depreciation
3. Intangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Accumulated amoriization

IV. Long-term assets in progress
1. Construction in progress

V. Long-term investments
I. Investments in associates, joint-ventures
2, Investments in equity of other entities

3. Provision for decline in the value of long-term
investments

VI. Other long-term assets
1. Long-term prepaid expenses
2. Deferred income tax assets
3. Good-will

TOTAL ASSETS

Code

200

210
211
215
216

220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229

240
242

250
252
253

254

260
261
262
269

270

Notes

V.2b
V.5b
V.4b

V.11

V.7

V.8

V.6
V.10.2

V.12b
V.13a
V.14

The notes to the consolidated financial siatementis form an integral part of this report

Deec. 31, 2024

10,729,040,534,013

261,113,626,237
41,009,327,331
197,597,000,000
22,507,298.906

8,842,354,518,919
8.447,997,047,615
10,380,306,104,480
(1,932,309,056,865)
723,833,196
1,232,472,730
(308,639,534)
393,633.638,108
420,826,943,652
(27,193,303,544)

1,102,226,502,006
1,102,226,502,006

388,142,321,026
388.142,321,026
81,000,000,000

Jan. 01, 2024

11,458,553,390,625
510,948,971,289

10,698,022,927
500,250,948.362

9,399,728,038,087
8,994.944,695,897
10,403,015,587,959
(1,408,070,892,062)
058,589,904
1,232,472,730
(273,8582,826)
403,824,752.286
420,826,943,652
(17,002,191,366)

1,073,431,031,494
1,073,431,031,494

339,092,799,513
258,092,799,513
§1,000,000,000

(81,000,000,000) -
135,203,565,825 135,352,550,242
69,713,347,344 61,131,031,953
8,180,006,533 8,558.,450,265
57,310,211,948 65,663,068.024
18,344,344,817,501 19,036,554,202,792
Page 8
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 01 - DN/HN

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

RESOURCES Code Notes Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
C. LIABILITIES 300 9,384,682,626,988 9,300,452,205,369
I.  Current liabilities 310 3,338,003,157,510 3,079,292,264.807
1. Short-term trade payables 311 V.15a 1,386,183.332,109 1,223.109,690.620
2. Taxes and other payables to the State Budget 313 V.18 31,210,631,201 35,567,587,582
3. Payables to employees 314 3,664,842 879 2,756,170,500
4. Short-term acerued expenses 315 V.16 284,691.283.,814 265,181,718,883
5. Short-term unearned revenue 318 V.20 114,021,887,481
6. Other short-term payables 319 V.17a 182,785.872,612 189,309,039,132
7. Short-term borrowings and financial lease liabilities 320  V.19a 1,335.445,307,414 1,363,368,058,090
II.  Long-term liabilities 330 6,046,679,469,478 6,221,159,940,562
l. Long-term trade payables 331  V.15b 369,157,333,980 250,864,145,998
2. Long-term unearned revenue 336 8,826,290 13,640,642
3. Other long-term pavables 337  V.17b 856,000,000,000 856,000,000,000
4. Long-term borrowings and financial lease liabilities 338  V.19b 4,742,790,904,521 5,034,922,124,978
5. Deferred income tax liabilities 341 V.13b 78.722,404,687 79,360,028,944
D. OWNERS’ EQUITY 400 8,959,662,190,513 9,736,101,997,423
L. Owners' equity 410 V.21 8,959,662,190,513 9,736,101,997,423
1. Owners' paid-in capital 411 7,300,000,000,000 7.300,000,000,000
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 4lla 7,300,000,000,000 7,300,000,000,000
2. Retained earnings 421 (575,837,354,077) 186,649,401,164
- Retained earnings accumulated to the end of
prior period 421a 186,649.401,164 247,103,099.030
- Retained earnings in this period 421b (762,486,753,241) (60,453,697,886)
3. Non-controlling interest 429 2,235,499,544 590 2,249,452,596,259
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 18,344.344,817,501  19,036,554,202,792

Prepared by Chief Accountant

=

Nguyen Thi Thuy Dung

Luu Khanh Truong

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral pari of this report Page 9



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Form B 02 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20024 Unit: VIND
ITEMS Code  Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
Gross revenue from sales of goods and
1. rendering of services 01 1,277,694,791,494 1,125,647,318,634
2. Less sales deductions 02 - .
Net revenue from sales of goods and
3. rendering of services 10 V1.1 1,277,694,791,494 1,125,647.318,634
4. Cost of goods sold and services rendered 1 V1.2 650,282,414,331 590,598,766,182
Gross profit from sales of goods and
5. rendering of services 20 627,412,377,163 535,048,552,452
(20=10-11)
6. Financial income 21 V1.3 629,765,534,705 744,073,568,740
Financial expenses 22 V1.4 990,937,607,031 1,345,278,223,299
In which: interest expense 23 664,893,719,.014 967,422,134,827
8. Gain or loss in joint-ventures, associates 24 (488,401,655,618) (50,179,278,369)
9. Selling expense 25 - 19,719,114
10. General & administration expenses 26 VI.5 546,869,945,113 70,352,394,627
11. Net operating profit / (loss) 30 (769,031,295,894) (186,707,494,217)
(30=20+(21-22)+24-(25+26))
12. Other income 31 V1.6 43,972,443,838 49,116,675,413
13. Other expenses 32 VL7 17,213,194,551 9.904,722,332
14. Other profit (40 = 31 - 32) 40 26,759,249,287 39,211,953,081
15. Net accounting profit before tax / (loss) 50 (742,272,046,607) (147,495,541,136)
(30 = 30 + 40)
16. Corporate income tax - current 51 VIS 24.006,730,499 6,608,375,513
17. Corporate income tax - deferred 52 (259,180,525) (1,383,490,585)
18. Net profit after corporate income tax / (loss) 60 (766,019,596,581) (152,720,426,064)
(60 =50 - 51 -52)
Shareholders of the parent company 61 (731,041,342,553) (35,911,486,594)
Non-controlling shareholders 62 (34,978,254,028) (116,808,939,470)
19. Earnings per share 70 VIL10 (1,001) (77)
20. Diluted earnings per share 71 VI11 (1,001) (77)
Ho Chi Minh City, July 18, 2025
Prepared by Chief Accountant 1 al Director

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral pari of this repori
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Under indirect method)

Form B 03 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit; VND
4
=
2

ITEMS Code Year 2024 Year 2023 A

I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES _53“.
N

1. Net profit before tax 01 (742,272,046,607) (147,495,541,136}\

2. Adjustments for

- Depreciation of fixed assets and investment properties 02 543.504,481.312 496,312,234,192
- Provisions 03 554,628,514,506 -
- Gain/losses from foreign exchange differences upon

revaluation of monetary assets denominated in foreign

currencies 04 114,526,492,271 99 735,147,130
- Gains/losses from investing activities 05 431,468,551,814 23.447.281,112
- Interest expense 06 663,464,404,738 986,624,162,324

3. Profit from operating activities before changes in

working capital 08 1,565,320,398,034 1,458,623,283,622
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in receivables 09 719,687,787,302 (994,459,161,216)
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in inventories 10 (900,433.010) (60,841.771)
- Increase (+)/ decrease (-} in payables (Other than

interest payables, income tax) 11 290,203,695,851 499.291,749.224
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+)in prepaid expenses 12 (15,491,760,846) 2.482,534,4009
- Increase (-)/ decrease (+) in trading securities 13 - 34.930,000.000
- Interest paid 14 (630,461,975,001) (1,011,756,219,212)
- Corporate income tax paid 15 (27.260,507,640) (22,714,777,648)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from operating activities 20 1,901,097,204,690 (33,663,432,592)

II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1. Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assets 21 (124,898,065,793) (200,417,290,383)

o Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and other long-

Exmasaets 22 22,468,229,312 17,748,194,897

3 Loans granted, purchases of debt instruments of other

entities 23 (707,120,128,000) (420,130,966,649)
4 Collection of loans, proceeds from sales of debt

instruments of other entities 24 120,864,128,000 492,522,867,010
5. Investments in other entities 25 (924,279,992.000) (47,407,409,286)

Proceeds from divestment in other entities 26 2.536,601,626 587,219.527
7. Dividends and interest received 27 21.720,328,495 44.,949.063,659

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activities 30 (1,588,708,898,360) (112,148,321,225)

The notes to the consolidated financial statemenis form an integral part of this report Page 11



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(Under indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

Form B 03 - DN/HN

Unit: VND =

~

ITEMS Code Notes

III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from issue of shares and capital contribution 31
2. Proceeds from borrowings 33
3. Repayments of borrowings 34
4. Payments for finance lease liabilities 35
5. Dividends paid 36

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities 40

Net cash inflows/(outflows) (50 = 20+ 30 + 40) 50

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

year 60

Effect of foreign exchange differences 61

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 70 V.1

(70 = 50+60+61)

Prepared by Chief Accountant
———

/

Nguyen Thi Thuy Dung Luu Khanh Truong

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Year 2024

3.156,000,000

1,369,600,772,347
(1,787,713,134,569)
(271,144,000)

(415,227,506,222)

- NP

Year 2023-”

M(

2.800,000,000,000 =
1,950,048,347,604
(4,606,691,398,652)
(271,144,000)
(7,700,000,000)
135,385,804,952

(102,839,199,892)

324,257,433,673
145,666,316

221,563,900,097

(10,425,948,865)

334,627,824,244
55,558,294

324,257,433,673

Ho Chi Minh City, July 18, 2025
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

I. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

1.

| 72,

A

Structure of ownership
BCG Energy Joint Stock Company (Hereinafter referred to as "the Company") operates under the Business registration |

certificate No. 0314445458 dated June 08, 2017 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of HCMC, and being :];
amended to the 18th ones dated June 06, 2025 regarding the change of head office address.

The Company's shares have been officially traded on the Unlisted Public Company Market with the stock code BGE since July =
31, 2024 according to Decision No. 836/QD-SGDHN dated July 23, 2024 of the Hanoi Stock Exchange on approval of
trading registration and Notice No. 3449/TB-SGDHN dated July 24, 2024 on notification of the first trading day of the
Company's registered shares.

The Company's charter capital according to its business registration certificate is VND 7.3 trillion, divided into 730 million
shares, with a par value of VND 10,000 per share, all shares of the Company are common shares.

Head office: LK 10-21, Tran Quy Kien Street, Binh Trung Tay Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

. Business sector: Manufacturing - Trading - Service.

. Principal activities

Providing management consulting services; producing and selling electricity.

. Normal operating cycle

Normal operating cycle of the Company lasts 12 months of the normal fiscal year beginning from January 01 and ending on
December 31.

. Operations in the period affecting the consolidated financial statements: non.
. Total employees to Dec. 31, 2024: 107 persons (Dec. 31, 2023: 128 persons)

. Enterprise Structure
Tl

Total subsidiaries

The Group has eighteen (18) subsidiaries which will be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements for the
accounting period ended at December 31, 2024.

List of Consolidated Subsidiaries

- As at December 31, 2024, the Group has twelve (12) directly owned companies as follows:

i t'
Company name and address Principal activities P-'ercentag.e Of, Perccnt.dge L Percentage oFvofing
capital contribution owning right
BCG Thanh Hoa Energy JSC  Producing electricity 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

Address: No. 31, Street No. 10, Hamlet 4, Nam Long Residential Area, An Thanh Commune, Ben Luc District, Long An
Province, Vietnam.

Clean Energy Vision
Development JSC (¥) Producing electricity 41.28% 41.28% 51.00%
Address: Provincial Road 639, Village 8 Dong, My Thang Commune, Phu My District, Binh Dinh Province, Vietnam.

Thanh Nguyen Energy
Development and Investment
Company Limited Producing electricity 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%

Address: Buon Chu Jut, Chu Gu Commune, Krong Pa District, Gia Lai Province, Vietnam.

BCG Vinh Long JSC Producing electricity 50.50% 50.50% 50.50%
Address: No. 356, Group 13, Phu Tan Hamlet, Trung Nghia Cominune, Vung Liem District, Vinh Long Province, Vietnam.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report FPage I3



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Unit: VND

7.2. List of Consolidated Subsidiaries (cont.)

teil

Company name and address Principal activities l?ercentagf: Of, Pcrcent.age 4 Perceutage of voting
capital contribution owning right ¥

Producing electricity - ﬁ
Management & =

Skylar JSC consulting 99.00% 99.00% 99.00% 9

Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
Management &

BCG GAIA JSC consulting 50.23% 50.23% 50.97%

Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

BCG Wind Soc Trang JSC Producing electricity 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

Address: Alley 1, Road TL934, Hoa My Hamlet, My Xuyen Town, My Xuyen District, Soc Trang Province, Vietnam.

Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power

Co., Lid, Producing electricity 99.90% 99.90% 100.00%
Address: No. 207, Giong Gieng Hamlet, Dan Thanh Commune, Duyen Hai Town, Tra Vinh Province, Vietnam.
Dong Thanh 2 Wind Pow

O BRLS WHRTOWE i S 99.93% 99.93% 100.00%
Co., Ltd.
Address: No. 207, Giong Gieng Hamlet, Dan Thanh Commune, Duyen Hai Town, Tra Vinh Province, Vietnam.
Aurai Wind Energy JSC Producing electricity 99.00% 99.00% 99.00%
Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
BCG Dien Bien Dong Wind
Power JSC Producing electricity 99.98% 99.98% 99.98%

Address: 86A Hoa Binh Street, Residential Group 10, Tan Thanh Ward, Dien Bien Phu City, Dien Bien Province, Vietnam.

Electricity
transmission and

Aton JSC distribution 85.00% 85.00%

Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

&5.00%

(*) Pursuant to the unconditional and irrevocable voting authorizations dated Dec. 27, 2021, the Company received additional
voting rights through the authorization of certain other shareholders of Clean Energy Vision Development JSC ("Clean
Energy") and holds 51% voting rights in Clean Energy. Therefore, the investment in Clean Energy is presented as an

investment in a Subsidiary.

- As at December 31, 2024, the Group has six (06) indirectly owned subsidiaries, specifically as follows:

¥ t
Company name and address Principal activities lfercentagl_e Of_ Percent'age of Percentage of voting
capital contribution owning right
Herb Solar JSC Producing electricity 69.00% 68.31% 69.00%
Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
Orchid Solar JSC Producing electricity 69.00% 68.31% 69.00%
Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
Violet Solar JSC Producing electricity 69.00% 68.31% 69.00%
Address: 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong
Energy JSC Producing electricity 99.90% 50.23% 99.90%
Address: Hamlet 1, Thanh An Commune, Thanh Hoa District, Long An Province, Vietnam.
The notes o the consolidmied financial siatements form an integral part of this report Page 4



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit; VND

T

i

(*)
)
()
()

I1.

List of Consclidated Subsidiaries (cont.)

- t'
Company name and address Principal activities lTercentag!a uf_ Percent.age ot Peru:nlage of voting
capital contribution owning right
BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC Producing electricity 99.90% 50.23% 99.90%

Address: Hamlet 1, Thanh An Commune, Thanh Hoa District, Long An Provinee, Vietnam.

Gia Huy Electric
Development JSC Producing electricity 99.80% 98.80% 96.80%
Address: 44 Nguyen Thai Hoc, Dien Bien Ward, Ba Dinh District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 08/2024/NQ-HDQT-SKYLAR dated Sep. 04, 2024, the Board of Directors of Skylar JSC (a
direct subsidiary of the Company) approved the transfer of all investment capital equivalent to 211,178 shares of Greensky
Tnfinitive JSC. The procedures for transferring ownership at Greensky Infinitive JSC were completed on Sep. 05, 2024. From
this date, Greensky Infinitive JSC is no longer an indirect subsidiary of the Company through Skylar JSC.

Pursuant to Resolution No. 04/2023/NQ-DHDCD-COSMOS dated Dec. 06, 2023, the General Meeting of Shareholders of
Cosmos Solar JSC (a direct subsidiary of Skylar JSC) approved the dissolution of Cosmos Solar JSC. Cosmos Solar JSC
officially dissolved on Feb. 20, 2024.

The voting rights ratio is determined based on the number of common shares issued by the subsidiaries in the form of joint
stock companies; and based on the capital contribution ownership ratio of the subsidiaries in form of limited liability.

List of associates reflected in the consolidated financial statements by equity method:
As at December 31, 2024, the Group has eight (08) associates as follows:

Company's name I:ercentagfa of. Percentftge of Percentage of voting
capital contribution owning right
Skylight Power Co., Ltd. 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
Hanwha BCGE O&M Co., Ltd. 49.00% 49.00% 49.00%
Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development JSC 25.00% 25.00% 25.00%
BCG - SP Greensky JSC 49.50% 49.50% 50.00%
TSN Long An JSC 45.00% 45.00% 45.00%
TSN Hon Dat JSC 45.00% 45.00% 45.00%
TSN Hue JSC 45.00% 45.00% 45.00%
TSN Ha Nam JSC 45.00% 45.00% 45.00%

(*) As at December 31, 2024, these companies have not completed the capital contribution procedures as disclosed in section
V.10.

. Disclosure on comparability of information in the consolidated financial statements

The selection of figures and information need to be presented in the consolidated financial statements has been implemented on
the principle of comparability among corresponding accounting periods.

. Applying the going concern basis in preparing consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been prepared on a going concern basis,
assuming that the Group will be able to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business for the
foreseeable future for at least the next 12 months from the date of these consolidated financial statements.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND REPORTING CURRENCY

. Fiscal year

The fiscal year is begun on January 01 and ended on December 31 annually.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 13



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

2

III.

Iv.

.

Reporting currency

Vietnam Dong (VND) is used as a currency unit for accounting records.

ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

. Applicable Accounting System

The Group applies Vietnamese accounting standards and corporate accounting system issued under the Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014, the Circular 53/2016/TT-BTC dated March 21, 2016 amended and
supplemented a number of articles of the Circular 200/2014/TT-BTC and circulars guiding the implementation of accounting
standards of the Ministry of Finance in preparing and presenting financial statements.

The Group applies the Circular No. 202/2014/TT-BTC ("Circular 202") dated December 22, 2014 issued by the Ministry of
Finance guiding the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

. Disclosure of compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System

We have performed the accounting work to prepare and present the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Vietnamese accounting standards, the Vietnamese enterprise accounting regime and relevant legal regulations. The
consolidated financial statements have been presented honestly and fairly on the consolidated financial position, consolidated
business results and cash flows of the enterprise.

The selection of figures and information presented in the notes to the consolidated financial statements is complied with the
material principle in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 21 - Presentation of the financial statements.

APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of BCG Energy Joint Stock Company and its
subsidiaries' ("the Group") for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024,

The financial statements of the subsidiary are consolidated from the purchase date when the Group starts control to the date it
ceases the control.

The subsidiaries' financial statements are prepared for the same accounting period as the Company's under the accounting
policies in consistency with the Company's. The adjustments for any different accounting policies are implemented to ensure
the consistency between the Subsidiaries and the Company.

All inter-Group balances and revenue, income, expenses incurred from transactions of the Group, including unrealized gains
incurred from inter-Group transactions in the assets' value are completely eliminated.

Unrealized loss incurred from intra-group transactions recorded in the assets' value are eliminated when the expenses resulting
in the loss are unrecoverable.

Interest of uncontrolled shareholders represents the portion in gain or loss and net assets of the subsidiaries that are not held by
the Group and presented separately in the consolidated income statement and from shareholders' equity of the Group in the
owners' equity in the consolidated balance sheet.

Losses incurred in the subsidiary are allocated in correspondence with the non-controlling shareholders' portion of ownership,
including the case where those losses are greater than the non-controlling shareholders' portion of ownership in the subsidiary's
net asset.

Good-will arising from purchase of an interest in the subsidiary is the difference between cost of acquisition and fair value of
the identifiable net assets of the subsidiary at the date of acquisition. The good-will will be allocated gradually and slowly in
the estimated maximum useful life not exceeding ten years. Periodically, the Group valuates loss of goodwill. In case where
evidence shows that the loss of goodwill is greater than allocated amount, allocation will be made by the lost goodwill right in
the period of occurrence.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 16



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

1. Basis of consolidation (cont.)

Gains on bargain purchases arise from the difference between the cost of the investment in a subsidiary and the parent's \
interest in the fair value of the subsidiary's net assets at the acquisition date. Gains on bargain purchases are recognised in
other income at the acquisition date.

2. Foreign exchange rate applicable in accounting

Transactions arising in foreign currencies are converted at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The balance of
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the accounting period is converted at the exchange rate on that /
date. <

Principles for determining exchange rates for arising transactions

The exchange rate used to convert transactions arising in foreign currency is the actual exchange rate at the time the
transaction occurs. Actual exchange rates for transactions in foreign currencies are determined as follows:

Actual exchange rate when buying and selling foreign currencies (spot foreign currency trading contracts, forward contracts,
futures contracts, options contracts, swap contracts): exchange rate signed in the buying contract, selling foreign currency
between the Company and the bank.

For capital contributions or receipt of contributed capital: foreign currency buying rate of the bank where the Company opens
an account to receive capital from investors at the date of capital contribution.

For receivables: buying rate of the commercial bank where the Group appoints the customer to pay at the time the transaction
arises.
For liabilities: selling exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group plans to trade at the time the transaction occurs.

For asset purchase transactions or expenses paid immediately in foreign currency (not through accounts payable): buying
exchange rate of the commercial bank where the Group makes payments.

The Group has translated foreign currencies into Vietnam Dong at the actual rate,
Principles for determining the actual rate

Closing balance of monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are revaluated at the actual rate ruling at the balance
sheet date,

- The actual exchange rates upon revaluation of monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies which have been classified
as assets will be the buying rate of the commercial bank where the company regulary trades on Dec. 31, 2024,

- The actual exchange rates upon revaluation of monetary assets denominated in foreign currencies which have been classified
as payables will be the selling rate of the commercial bank where the company regulary trades on Dec. 31, 2024.

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand, cash in bank (demand deposit).
Cash equivalents are short-term investments with a redemption period or maturity of no more than 3 months from the date of
purchase, are easily converted into a known amount of money and without much risk in conversion into money.

4. Financial investments

Loans

Loans are determined at the original cost less (-) provision for doubtful debts. Provision for bad debts of loans is established
based on the expected level of loss that may occur.

Financial investments in Associates

An associate is an enterprise over which the Company has significant influence but no control over the financial and operating
policies. Significant influence is the right to participate in making financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
enterprise but not to control these policies.

The notes to the consolidated financial siatemenis form an integral pari af this report Page 17



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

Financial investments in Associates (cont.)
The equity method: is the method in which the investment is recorded initially at cost and will not be adjusted whenever there

is a change of the investor's ownership in net assets of the associate. The consolidated income statement reflects the Group's
portion in associate's operating results as a separate item after the investment date.

The goodwill arising from the investment in Associates will be reflected in the book value of the investment. The Group does
not allocate this goodwill. but evaluate annually to see whether the goodwill is devalued or not.

The financial statements of Associates are prepared at the same accounting period as the Group's and consistent accounting 7
policies are applied. The appropriate adjustments have been conducted in order to ensure the accounting policies are applied in .
consistency with the Group's when necessary.

Equity investments in other entities

Investments in equity instruments of other entities include investments in equity instruments but the Company does not have <
control, joint control or significant influence over the invested party.

Investments in equity instruments of other entities are initially recognized at the original cost, which includes the purchase
price or capital contribution plus direct costs related to investment activities. Dividends and profits of periods before the
investment is purchased are accounted for as a decrease in the value of that investment itself. Dividends and profits of periods
after the investment is purchased are recorded as revenue. Dividends received in shares are only tracked by the number of
additional shares, the value of shares received is not recorded/recorded at par value (except for state-owned companies that
comply with current provisions of law).

Provision for loss of investments in equity instruments of other entities are made as follows:

- For investments in listed stocks or the fair value of investments that are reliably determined, the provision is based on the
market value of the stocks.

- For investments whose fair value cannot be determined at the time of reporting, provisions are made based on the investee's
losses with the level of provision equal to the difference between the actual capital contribution of the parties at the other unit
and the actual owners' equity multiplied by the Company's capital contribution ratio compared to the total actual capital
contribution of the parties at the other unit.

Dividends being allocated by shares

In case of dividends are allocated by shares, the investor only observes the quantity of shares according to the notes to the
financial statements, not record increase the investment value and revenue from financing activities.

Dividends, profit shared by monetary or non-monetary assets for pre-investment are not recorded to the revenue from fi nancing
activities, but recorded a decrease in the value of investment,

Dividends, profit shared by monetary or non-monetary assets for post-investment are recorded to the revenue from financing
activities at the fair value on the receiving date.

Held-to-maturity investments

An investment is classified as held to maturity when the Corporation/Enterprise has the intention and ability to hold it to
maturity.

Held-to-maturity investments include: term bank deposits (including bills and promissory notes), bonds, preferred shares must
be redeemed by the issuer at a certain time in the future and held-to-maturity loans to collect interest periodically and other
held-to-maturity investments.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recorded at cost including purchase price and costs related to the investment

transaction. After initial recording, these investments are recorded at their recoverable amount. Interest income from held-to-
maturity investments afier the purchase date is recorded on the income statement on an accrual basis. Interest earned before the
Company holds it is recorded as a deduction from the original price at the time of purchase.

When there is solid evidence that part or all of the investment may not be recoverable and the amount of loss can be reliably
determined, the loss is recorded in financial expenses during the period and directly deducted from the investment value.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page I8
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

5.

Trade receivables and other receivables

Receivables are presented at book value less provisions for doubtful debis.

The classification of receivables is done according to the following principles:

- Receivables from customers reflect commercial receivables arising from buying and selling transactions between the
Enterprise and the buyer who is an independent unit of the Company,

- Other receivables reflect non-commercial receivables, not related to purchase and sale transactions.

Provision for bad debts is made for each bad debt based on the overdue age of the debts or the expected level of loss that
may occur, specifically as follows:

- For overdue receivables: according to the assessment of the Board of Management;
- For receivables that are not overdue but are unlikely to be recovered: based on the expected level of loss to set up provisions,

Increases and decreases in bad debt provision balances that need to be made at the end of the fiscal year are recorded in
general & administration expenses

. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value of inventories.
Original costs are determined as follows:

- The original cost of materials, merchandises consists of costs of purchase, costs of transportation and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Method of calculating inventories' value: Weighted average method.

Method of accounting for the inventories: Perpetual methad.

Method of making provision for decline in value of inventories: Provision for decline in value of inventories is made for
each inventory with the cost greater than the net realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated selling price of inventories
in the ordinary course of business less (-) estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to sell them. (For
services provided in progress, provision for decline in value of inventories is calculated according to each type of service with
a separate price.)

Increases and decreases of provision for decline in value of inventories balances that need to be made at the end of the fiscal
year are recorded in the cost of goods sold.

. Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed asset
comprises all expenditures of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. The expenditures
incurred after initial recognition are only capitalised as an additional cost of tangible fixed assets when they have resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of those tangible fixed assets. The expenditures
which do not meet the above conditions are charged to the expenses in the year.

When the assets are sold or disposed, their original costs and the accumulated depreciation which have been written off and
any gain or loss from disposal of assets are recorded in the income statement.
Tangible fixed assets purchased

The original cost of purchased tangible fixed assets shall consist of the actual purchase price less (-) trade discounts or
reduction plus (+) taxes (excluding taxes to be refunded) and relevant expenses calculated to the time when such fixed assets
are put into operation such as fees for installation and trial operation of fixed assets: specialists and other direct costs.

The original cost of a tangible fixed asset formed from capital construction under the mode of tendering shall be the finalisation
price of the construction project, other relevant fees plus (+) registration fee (if any).

Fixed assets which are buildings, structures attached to land use right, the value of land use right is computed separately and
recorded as intangible fixed assets.
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7.2 Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at cost less (-) accumulated depreciation. The historical cost of intangible fixed assets
includes all costs that the Company must spend to acquire the fixed asset up to when the asset is put into a ready-to-use state.
Costs related to intangible fixed assets that arise after initial recognition are recorded as production and business costs in the
period unless these costs are associated with a specific intangible fixed asset and increase the economic benefits from these
assets.

When intangible fixed assets are sold or liquidated, their original cost and accumulated depreciation are written off and proﬂts G

and losses arising from disposal are recorded in income or expenses during the year,

7.3 Financial lease fixed assets

A lease is classified as a finance lease if the majority of the risks and rewards associated with ownership of the asset belong to
the lessee.

H(
'I_
|

'H

Financial lease fixed assets are stated at original cost less accumulated depreciation. The original cost of a fixed asset under a—

finance lease is the lower of the fair value of the leased asset at the inception of the lease contract and the present value of the
minimum lease payment. The discount rate to calculate the present value of the minimum rental payment for a property lease is
the interest rate implicit in the property lease contract or the interest rate stated in the contract. In case the interest rate implicit
in the |ease contract cannot be determined, the loan interest rate at the beginning of the lease will be used.

7.4 Method of depreciating and amortizing fixed assets

Depreciation is charged to write off the cost of fixed assets on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. Useful life
means the duration in which the tangible fixed assets produce their effect on production and business.

The estimated useful life for assets is as follows:

Buildings and structures 20 years
Machinery and equipment 03 - 20 years
Transporiation and facilities 06 - 20 years
Qffice equipment 02 - 10 years
Financial lease fixed assets 03 - 07 years
Investment license 50 years

8. Construction in progress

Construction in progress reflects directly related costs (including interest expenses) related in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy to assets under construction, machinery and equipment being installed for production purposes, leasing and
management as well as costs associated with ongoing fixed asset repairs. These assets are recognized at cost and are not
subject to depreciation.

These costs are capitalised as an additional cost of asset when the works have been completed. After the works have been
finalized, the asset will be handed over and put into use.

9. Accounting for business cooperation contract (BCC)

BCC in the form of jointly controlled operations is a joint venture that does not require the establishment of a new business
entity. Ventures shall fulfill obligations and exercise rights according to the BCC. The joint-venture activities may be carried
out alongside other ordinary activities of each venture.

The Group initially records amounts contributed to BCC at the original cost and reflects them as other receivables.
The Group records receipt to BCC at original cost and reflects as other liabilities, not in owners' equity.
A BCC in the form of shares of after tax profits is controlled by one party, in which:

If a BCC stats that each party is entitled to a fixed amount of profit regardless of the performance of the BCC, it is a lease of
assets in substance.
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9. Accounting for business cooperation contract (BCC) (cont.)

10,

-

11.

12.

13.

If the BCC states that each party is entitled to profits when the BCC is profitable and is required to bear lisses when the BCC
is loss making, in substance, the BCC parties share revenue and expenses because each party can jointly control the operation
and cash flows of the BCC.

When the Company is in charge of accounting and tax finalisatuon, the Company is required to recognise the entire revenue
and expenses arising from the BCC, and then allocate the proportionate shares of revenue and expenses to the other parties in
the period.

When the Company is not in charge of accounting and tax finalisation, the Company accounts for its proportionate share of
revenue and expenses from the BCC,

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses include expenses that actually incurred but relate to the operating result of several accounting periods.
Method of allocating prepaid expenses: The determining and allocating of prepaid expenses into costs of production and doing
business of each period is on a straight-line basis.

The Group's prepaid expenses include the following main expenses:

Tools and supplies: Tools and supplies that have been put into use are allocated to expenses using the straight-line basis with
an allocation period not exceeding 36 months.

Fixed asset repair costs: One-time asset repair costs of great value are allocated to expenses using the straight-line basis with

an allocation period not exceeding 36 months.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received. Liabilities are recognized based
on reasonable estimates of the amount payable.

The classification of payables as payables to vendors, internal payables and other payables is based on the following principles:

- Payables to vendors reflect trade payables arising from purchases of goods, services, assets and the vendor is an independent
unit of the Group;

- Other payables reflect non-commercial payables, not related to transactions of buying, selling or providing goods and
services.

Borrowings and finance lease liabilities

Borrowings are total amounts the Group owes to banks, institutions, financial companies and other objects (excluding
borrowings under the form of bond or preferred stock issuance which require the issuer to repurchase at a certain time in the
future).

Borrowings and financial lease liabilities are monitored in detail according to creditor, agreement and borrowed asset.

Borrowing costs

Principles for recording borrowing costs: Borrowing costs include loan interest and other costs incurred directly related to
loans. Borrowing costs are recorded as expenses when incurred.

In cases where borrowing costs are directly related to construction investment or production of unfinished assets that need a
long enough period (over 12 months) to be put into use for the intended purpose or sold, then these borrowing costs are
capitalized. For separate loans serving the construction of fixed assets or investment real estate, interest is capitalized even if
the construction period is less than 12 months. Income arising from the temporary investment of loans is recorded as a decrease
in the cost of the relevant assets.

For general loan capital, which is used for construction investment purposes or production of unfinished assets, capitalized
borrowing costs are determined according to the capitalization rate for the weighted average accumulated costs incurred for
capital construction investment or production of that asset. The capitalization rate is calculated according to the weighted
average interest rate of outstanding loans during the year, excluding separate loans serving the purpose of creating a specific
asset.
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14. Bonds

16.

1

18.

The book value of a bond is usually reflected on a net basis equal to the bond value at par value minus the bond discount plus
the bond premium.

The Company monitors discounts and premiums for each type of common bond issued and the allocation of each discount and
premium when determining borrowing costs included in expenses or capitalization for each period, specifically:

- Bond discounts are gradually allocated to calculate borrowing costs each periad throughout the bond's term.

Amortization of the discount or premium may use either the effective interest rate method or the straight-line method.

- According to the straight-line method: The discount or premium is evenly allocated throughout the bond's term.

- Salary policies and compulsory insurance

Salary caleulated and accounted for expenses in the period according to the labor contract and the salary regulation of the
Company. Accordingly, social insurance, health insurance and unemployment insurance are also deducted at the rate of 25,5%,
4,5% and 2% corresponding to the employee's salary. The rate of 21,5% will be included in the cost of social insurance, health
insurance, unemployment insurance in the period; and 10,5% will be deducted from the employee's salary.

Accruals

Accruals include interest expense, salary and bonus expenses, transportation expense, ... which have been arised in the
reporting period, but have not been seftled. Salary and bonus expenses are recorded into cost of production, business expenses
in the period according to the principle of conformity between revenue and expenses.

Owner’s Equity
The owners' capital
The owners' capital is recognized according to the actual contributed capital of owners.

Retained earnings

Profit after corporate income tax shall be distributed to shareholders after setting aside funds in accordance with the Charter of
the Group as well as the provisions of law and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The distribution of profits to shareholders taking into consideration non-monetary items included in undistributed after-tax
profits may affect cash flow and the ability to pay dividends/profits such as interest due to revaluation of assets contributed to
capital, interest due to revaluation of monetary items, financial instruments and other non-monetary items.

Dividends/profits are recognized as liabilities when approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from goods sold

Revenue from the sale of good should be recognized when all the five (5) following conditions have been satisfied: 1. The
enterprise has transferred to buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 2. The enterprise retains neither
continuing managerial involvement as an owner nor effective control over the goods sold; 3. The amount of revenue can be
measured reliably; When the contract specifies that buyers are entitled to return products, goods they have bought under
specific conditions, the enterprise will record the revenue only when those conditions no longer exist and the buyers do not
have right to return products, goods (except for changing to other goods, services) 4.The economic benefits associated with the
transaction has flown or will flow to the enterprise; 5. Identify the costs related to the sales transaction.

Revenue from service rendered

Revenue from services rendered is recorded when the result of the supply of services is determined reliably. In case where the
services are rendered in several periods, the revenue will recorded by the part of completed works at the end of the accounting
period.
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19.

20.

21,

22

Revenue from service rendered (cont.) :é
Revenue from services rendered is determined when all the four (4) following conditions have been satisfied: 1. The revenue i i
determined firmly; When the contract specifies that buyers are entitled to return the service they have bought under specifi €
conditions, the enterprise will record the revenue only when those conditions no longer exist and the buyers do not have right to\\
return service: 2. The economic benefits associated with the transaction has flown or will flow from the supply of the provided
service; 3. Part of completed works can be determined at the end of the accounting period; 4. Determine the costs incurred for

the transaction and the costs to complete the service provision transaction.
Financial income \:
Income arising from interests, distributed dividends and profits of the enterprises shall be recognized if they simultaneously

satisfy the two (2) conditions below: 1. It is possible to obtain economic benefits from the concerned transactions: 2. Income is /
determined with relative certainty. /

Financial incomes include interests, distributed dividends and profits and income from other financing activities (liquidation of
capital; Foreign exchange gains; Capital transfer gain)...
Interests recognized on an accrual basis, determined on the balance of deposit accounts and interest rates in each period;

Distributed dividends and profits shall be recognized when shareholders are entitled to receive dividends or profits from the
capital contribution, Dividends received in shares are only tracked by the number of additional shares, the value of shares
received/recorded at par value is not recorded.

When an amount which has been recorded as an income becomes irrecoverable, such irrecoverable or uncertainly recoverable
amount must be accounted as expense incurred in the period, but not recorded as income decrease.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold is the cost of products, goods, services and other expenses recorded in the cost of goods sold or recorded a
decrease in the cost of goods sold in the reporting period. The cost of goods sold is recorded at the date the transaction incurred
or likely to incur in the future regardless payment has been made or not. The cost of goods sold and revenue shall be recorded
simultaneously on conformity principles. Expenses exceeding normal consumption level are recorded immediately to the cost
of goods sold on prudent principle.

Financial expenses

Financial expenses include expenses or loss related to the financial investment, borrowing cost and capital borrowing,
provision for devaluation of financial investment and other financial expenses.

Financial expenses are recorded in details by their content and determined reliably when there are sufficient evidences on
these expenses.

General administrative expenses

Reflecting general administration expenses of the Company that include salary expenses of management segment; social,
health, unemployment insurances. union fees; office materials, tools, depreciation of assets; land rental, business operation tax;
provision for doubtful debts; cost of hired services and others paid by cash.

Taxes

Corporate income tax includes current corporate income tax and deferred corporate income tax incurred in the year and set
basis for determining operating result after tax in current fiscal year.

Current income tax is a tax calculated based on taxable income. Taxable income differs from accounting profit due to
adjustment of temporary differences between tax and accounting, non-deductible expenses as well as adjustment of non-
taxable income and loss carried forward.

Deferred income tax is the corporate income tax that will be payable or refunded due to the temporary difference between the
book value of assets and liabilities to prepare financial statements and the basis for calculating income tax. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized only when it is probable that
taxable profits will be available in the future against which these deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
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A

22,

23,

24,

Taxes (cont.)

The book value of deferred tax assets is reconsidered at the end of the financial year and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or the entire deferred tax asset to be
used. Previously unrecognized deferred corporate income tax assets are reassessed at the end of the financial year and are
recognized to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the income tax assets
can be utilized.

Tax rates of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are determined at the tax rates expected to apply in the year the
asset is realized or the liability is paid based on the tax rates in effect at the end of the fiscal year. Deferred income tax is
recorded in the income statement and recorded directly in equity only when the tax relates to items recorded direct] y in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset when the Company has the legal right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
are relevant to corporate income tax which is under the management of one tax authority of the same subject to corporate
income tax and the Company has intention to pay current income tax liabilities and current income tax assets on a net basis.

The tax amounts payable to the State budget will be finalized with the tax office. Differences between the tax amounts payahle
specified in the book and the tax amounts under finalization will be adjusted when the tax finalization has been issued by the
lax office.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the Group is 20%. For solar power investment projects, the tax rate and tax

incentives of the Investment Incentive Certificate for each project and the corporate income tax incentives under Article 23,
Circular 78/2014/TT-BTC ("Circular 78") will be applied, specifically as follows:

- At Clean Energy Vision Development JSC and Hanwha BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC: The Group applies a corporate
income tax rate of 10% for 15 years. Tax exemption for 04 years from the first year of taxable income (from 2021 to 2024)
and a 50% reduction for the next 09 years (from 2023 to 2033).

- At BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC: The Group applies a corporate income tax rate of 10% for 15 years. Tax exemption for 04
years from the first year of taxable income (from 2019 to 2022) and a 50% reduction for the next 09 years (from 2023 to
2031).

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income available to common shareholders after appropriating to Bonus
and Welfare Fund by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing net income available to common shareholders (after adjusting dividends of preferred
conversible shares) by the weighted-average number of common share outstanding and the weighted-average number to be
issued in case where all dilutive potential common are converted into common shares.

Related parties

According to Accounting Standard No. 26 - Information about related parties at the Company is as follows:

(i) Associate companies;

(11) Individuals with direct or indirect voting rights in reporting enterprises that lead to significant influence over these
enterprises, including close family members of these individuals. Close family members of an individual are those who can
control or be controlled by that person when dealing with a business such as: Father, mother, wife, husband, children, brothers.
and sisters.

(iii) Key management employees have the rights and responsibilities for planning, managing and controlling the activities of
the reporting enterprise, including leaders and management staff of the company and close family members of these individuals;

(iv) Enterprises where the individuals mentioned in case (ii) or case (iii) directly or indirectly hold an important part of the
voting rights or through this, that person has can have a significant impact on the business. This includes businesses that are
owned by the directors or major shareholders of the reporting enterprise and businesses that share a key member of
management with the reporting enterprise.
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24. Related parties (cont.)

Unit: VND =
3]

C

In considering each relationship between related parties, it is necessary to pay attention to the nature of the relationship, not '

Just the legal form of those relationships.

25. Assets, revenue and operating results by segment
A reportable segment includes business segment or a geographical segment.

A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing an individual product or

service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other

business segments.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components

operating in other economic environments.

For the purpose of management, the Company operates in a large scale of the country, so it presents major segment reporting

by business sector, the minor segment reporting by geographical segment.

V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Cash on hand
Cash in bank (*)

Cash equivalents

Bank deposit with term of less than 3 months (interest rate: 1.5% - 3.4%/year)

Total

Dec. 31, 2024

183,549,150,657
63,509,696
183,485,640,961
38,014,749,440
38,014,749,440

Jan. 01, 2024

74,531,880,865
63,509,696
74,468,371,169
249,725,552,808
249.725,552.808

221,563,900,097

324,257,433,673

(*) Of which, the amount of bank deposits being used as collateral for loans of BCG GAIA JSC and Aurai Wind Energy ISC

(subsidiaries) is VND 25,676,284,794 (See note V.19)

Jan. 01, 2024

2. Trade receivables Dec. 31, 2024
Value Provision Value Provision
a. Short-term 656,444,229,847 (191,557,800) 317,900,737,762 -

Local customers
Related parties (see Note
VIIL3) 31,172,783,000 (191.557,800) 13,102,847,480 -
Electricity Power Trade

(*) Company 616,215,199,175 - 295,338,153,305 -
Other customers 9.056.247,672 - 9,459,736,977 -
Foreign customers (USD
298,986.97)
Leader Energy Holding
Berhad 6,616,886,229 - - =
Leader Energy Ventures
SDN. BHD. 032,534,768 - - -

b. Long-term 41,009,327,331 - - -

Electricity Power Trade

(*) Company 41,009,327,331 - - -
Total 697.,453,557,178 (191,557,800) 317,900,737,762 E
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2. Trade receivables (cont.)

(*) As at 31/12/2024 and 31/12/2023, the Group has mortgaged the debt claims arising from the power purchase contract
between the Group and Electricity Power Trade Company for bank loans (Note V.19).

The balance of short-term receivables of the Electricity Power Trade Company as at Dec. 31, 2024 includes the following
main items:

- The short-term receivable balance of the Electricity Power Trade Company as at Dec. 31, 2024 of Hanwha - BCG Bang
Duong Energy Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary - referred to as Hanwha Bang Duong) with the amount of VND
353,959.919,807 from the GAIA Solar Power Plant. According to the Government Inspectorate's Notice No. 31 16/TB-TTCP
dated Dec. 25, 2023, the GAIA Solar Power Plant project invested by Hanwha Bang Duong was put into commercial
operation without the Department of Electricity and Renewable Energy inspecting the acceptance work and issuing a
document approving the investor's acceptance results. However, by Jan. 24, 2025, Hanwha Bang Duong had the Department
of Electricity and Renewable Energy approving the project acceptance results.

- Short-term and long-term receivables of the Electricity Power Trade Company of Clean Energy Vision Development JSC (a
subsidiary - referred to as Clean Energy) includes receivables with a value of VND 1 12,547,845,079 arising from revenue
that has been settled during the year according to the contract, contract appendix signed before December 31,2024 and up to
this point, Clean Energy has recovered the entire amount; receivables with a value of VND 153,327,855,719 arising from
provisional revenue calculated according to the ceiling unit price for the electricity capacity of phase 2 of Phu My 1 and 3
Solar Power Project in the period from May 2023 (excluding receivables that have been settled according to the provisional
electricity purchase price equal to 50% of the ceiling price specified in the contract, appendices signed before Dec. 31,

/
£
v

2024). The Company has reached an official electricity selling price agreement for this electricity capacity after the end off =

the fiscal year (Note in section VIIIL.2):

l{t
4
+ Regarding the estimated revenue for the 83.10 MWp capacity of Phu My 1 Solar Power Plant - Phase 2 from May 2023 \

to Dec. 2024, the value until Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 111,841,686,064. The two parties will make settlement of this amount
within 1 year from the effective date of the amended contract (February 202))..

+ Regarding the estimated revenue for the 31.10 MWp capacity of Phu My 3 Solar Power Plant - Phase 2 from May 2023
{o December 2024, the value as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 41,486,169,655 The parties will malke settlement of this amount
within 2 years from the effective date of the amended coniract (April 2025).

Clean Energy uses the debt collection rights arising from the Power Purchase Agreement between the Company and the
Power Purchase Company to secure loans at Vietam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade (Note V.19).

As at Dec. 31, 2024, the balance of short-term receivables from customers that were overdue from 06 months to 15 months
but had not yet made provisions was VND 185,915,071,585. However, in Feb. 2025, the Group recovers a portion of the
above debt balance with an amount of VND 129,113,990,708. Based on the information available at the date of these
consolidated financial statements, the Board of Management assessed that the above overdue debts were recoverable and did
not make provisions.

3. Short-term prepayments to suppliers

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

Short term Amount Provision Amount Provision
Local suppliers 694,782,308,752 (1,026,506,600) 965,564,908,834 -
Related parties (see note
VIIL.3) 20,171,356,008 - 53,734,324,321 -
Huynh Phat Huy One Member
Trading Service Co., Lid. 470,937,900.000 - 670,937,900,000 —
Hung Loc General Trading
Co., Ltd. 74,233,064,600 - 74,233,064,600 -
Other suppliers 129.439,988,144 (1,026,506,600) 166.659,619.913 -
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1

3. Short-term prepayments to suppliers (cont.) Ir

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024 )

Value Provision Value Provision C

4]

Foreign suppliers -

(USD 6,138,389) 142,937,642,745 , 142,937,642,745 i

Powerchina International

Group Limited 142,937,642,745 - 142,937,642,745 -
Total (*) 837,719,951,497 (1,026,506,600) 1,108,502,551,579 "

(*) Mainly prepayments to the Groups to perform supply and construction contracts for the Group's Projects. However, up to
now, the project has not yet completed the legal documents, so the next work has not been carried out. The balance of

prepayments to the seller without a response confirmation letter is VND 142,937,642,745.

4. Other receivables

a. Short-term

a.1. Other receivables from
third parties
- Interest receivable from
loans, deposits, investment
cooperation

(i) - Deposit for Ms. Nguyen
Thi Bich Lan

(ii) - Deposit for Hoang Vu
General Production - Import
- Export - Trading Service
Co., Ltd.

- Receivables under business
cooperation contracts

- Advances

- Others

a.2. Other receivables from
related parties (*)

(v

o

(iii) - Deposit for Tracodi
Construction Holdings JSC
(iv) - Advances 1o Mr. Dang
Dinh Quyet
- Advances to other
individuals

- Receivables under business
cooperation contracts

(v

e

- Interest receivable from
loans, business cooperation
- Others

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Value Provision Value Provision
5,773,210,330,931 (308,955,966,132) 5,622,993,196,071 -
1,522,684,223,143 (308,284,357 .442) 2,295,345,173,388 -
51,908,766,002 (8,284,357,442) 236,359,028.618
592.896.600,000 - - -
118,935,250,000 - - -
750,501,000,000 (300,000,000,000) 2,023,598.000,000 -
3.408,972,538 = 29,633,722,260 -
5,033,634,603 - 5,754,422.510 -
4,250,526,107,788 (671,608,690) 3,327,648,022,683 .
39.,000,000,000 = 2 2
61,141,612,674 - 2L =
800,000,000 e 5 -
4,114,751,635,067 - 3,294,931,455,067 -
33,873,419,062 - 30,704,148,230 -
959,440,985 (671,608,690) 2.012.419,386 -
Page 27
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4. Other receivables (cont.) Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Value Provision Value Provision _
b. Long-term 22,507,298,906 2 500,250,948,362 3
b.1. Other receivables from
third parties 11,126,298,906 - 490,250,948,362 -
- Interest receivable from
loans, business cooperation - % 479.100,000,000 -
- Long term deposit 11,077,000,000 = 11,077,000,000 -
- Others 49,298,906 . 73,948,362 .
b.2. Other receivables from
related parties (*) 11,381,000,000 - 10,000,000,000 -
(v) - Interest receivable from
loans, business cooperation 11,381,000,000 - 10,000,000,000 -
Total 5,795,717,629,837 (308,955,966,132)  6,123,244,144,433 -

(*) Related party details: see Note VIIL3,

(i) Pursuant to Resolution No. 57/2024/NQ-HDQT-BCGE signed on Dec. 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the transfer of land use rights, house ownership rights and other assets attached to land of 13 plots of land located
in Loc Quang commune, Bao Lam district, Lam Dong province owned by Ms. Nguyen Thi Bich Lan. On the same day, the
Company and Ms. Nguyen Thi Bich Lan signed a contract on deposit and principles of land use rights transfer signed on Dec.
31, 2024. The transfer period is 01 year from the date of signing the contract or a longer period depending on the agreement
of the parties at each time.

(ii) Deposit for the transfer of 17,150,000 shares, accounting for 49% of the charter capital of BCG Vinh Long JSC
(currently also a subsidiary of the Company) from Hoang Vu General Production - Import - Export - Trading Service
Company Limited under the share purchase contract No. 01/2024/HDMBCP/HV-BCGE signed on December 31, 2024 with
a transfer price of VND 125,195,000,000. As of the date of this report, the two parties have not vet carried out the transfer.

(iii) Deposit for Tracodi Construction Group JSC (former name: Industrial Development and Transport Investment J5C)
(Tracodi) according to the deposit transfer order dated Aug. 30, 2024. By Jul. 1, 2025, according to the payment
confirmation minutes No. 010725/BCGVL-TCD dated July 1, 2025, Tracodi acknowledged and agreed to confirm the
amount of VND 39,000,000,000 that the Company transferred to Tracodi on Aug. 30, 2024 as the Deposit to ensure the
signing of the Contract to transfer the capital contribution owned by Tracodi of VND 117,600,000,000 at Thanh Nguyen
Energy Investment and Development Company Limited (a subsidiary), equivalent to 49% of the charter capital of Thanh
Nguyen Energy Investment and Development Company Limited with the transfer value: VND 117,600,000,000 after the
prerequisites are met.

(iv) Advances to Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet for the purpose of site clearance for the Group's projects. Including advances from
BCG Dien Bien Dong Wind Power Joint Stock Company and Aton Joint Stock Company (two subsidiaries) to Mr. Dang
Dinh Quyet (Deputy General Director of BCG Energy Joint Stock Company) with a value of VND 34.99 billion on May 24,
2024 and Jun. 29, 2024. These advances was made from the company's bank account immediately after BCG Energy Joint
Stock Company and other shareholders contributed capital to these two subsidiaries.

The notes to the consolidaied financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 28
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Unit: VND

5. Receivables from loans Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Value Provision Value Provision

a. Short-term 509,202,506,902 (163,454,483,975) 109,645,483,975 -
Related parties (see Note
VIIL3) 332,789,022,927 (56,220,000,000) 109,038,483,975 S
E Power 1 JSC 129.016,483.975 (107,234,483,975) - -
Others 47,397,000,000 - 607,000,000 R
b. Long-term 197,597,000,000 - 10,698,022,927 - 4:
Related parties (see Note H
VIIL3) 197,597,000,000 - 10,698,022,927 - i

Total (*) 706,799,506,902 (163,454,483,975) 120,343,506,902 - o

(*) Loans are based on specific loan contracts and contract extension appendices; loan terms range from 12 months to 36
months. Loan interest rates are based on each contract, with a maximum of 14.05%/year.

Of which, the loan balance at December 31, 2024 includes:

+ The balance loan receivable from BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power Joint Stock Company ("Khai Long 1") is VND
272,620,000,000 and the remaining loan interest receivable is VND 7,010,568,980, Khai Long 1 is negotiating the bid price
with the general contractor. After that, Khai Long 1 will continue the construction items and put the project into operation. The
Board of Management assesses the feasibility and the ability to develop the above Wind Power Plant project in the future as
high. Therefore, the Board of Management believes that there is a possibility of recovery and assesses that there is no
provision that needs to be made for the difficulty in recovering the entire principal and interest of the loan of Khai Long 1.

+ The balance of unsecured loan receivables to Tam Sinh Nghia Investment - Development JSC and TSN Long An JSC with a
total value of VND 56,220,000,000. Due to the lack of sufficient appropriate evidence to accurately determine the recoverable
net value of this item at the time of preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management applied the prudence principle
and decided to make a provision of 100% of the book value.

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024

6. Capital construction in progress

(i) Krong Pa 2 Solar Power Plant Project 851,885,814.612 782,154,991,965
(ii) Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Plant Project 111,206,259,685 104,447,584,290
(i) Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Plant Project 17,907,408,943 70,910,802,204
(iv) Vinamilk Quang Ngai 2 Rooftop Power Project 18,781,571,439 18,756,595,644
(iv) Vinamilk Quang Ngai 3 Rooftop Power Project 18,794,568,714 18,769,592,919
_ (iv) Vinamilk Quang Ngai 4 Rooftop Power Project 18,769,127,802 18,744,152.007
(iv) Vinamilk Quang Ngai 5 Rooftop Power Project 16,450,567,846 16,428,331,589
(iv) Vinamilk Quang Ngai 6 Rooftop Power Project 15,176,319,651 15,154.683,293
(iv) Power Plant Project Phase 2 13,100,928,847 15,057.093,230
(iv) BCG Soc Trang 1 Wind Power Plant Project 10,687,883,388 8,710,953,672
Other procurement and capital construction investments 9,466,051,079 4,296,250,681
Total 1,102,226,502,006 1,073,431,031,494

(1) This is capital construction in progress of the Krong Pa 2 Solar Power Plant Project invested by Thanh Nguyen Energy
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. The project has been approved for investment policy under Decision No. 239/QD-
UBND dated May 25, 2018 and Decision No. 634/QD-UBND dated Oct. 16, 2023 approving the adjustment of investment
policy and approving the Investor of Gia Lai Provincial People's Committee. All property rights of the Krong Pa 2 project
have been mortgaged for the bond issuance with code TNECH2227001, issued from Dec. 9, 2022, under Mortgage Contract
No. 01/2022/TCQTS-KRONGPA2/TPS-TNE dated Dec. 15, 2022. At the time of this report, the Group has been approved
to adjust the investment policy and approved the project investor on the progress as follows:

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 32
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit; VND

6. Capital construction in progress (cont.)
+ For 21 MWp project: Commercial operation of workload in Q4/2025.
+ For 28 MWp project: Commercial operation of workload in Q4/2028.

The balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 of this project includes construction costs, equipment purchase costs, compensation, support
and resettlement costs with a total value of VND 707,1 16,895,753; capitalized interest costs of VND 89,358,376,342 and
other project-related costs. This project is currently a collateral for bonds issued by Thanh Nguyen Energy Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. according to Note V.19.

(if) This is capital construction in progress of the Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Plant Project invested by Dong Thanh | Wind
Power Co., Ltd (a subsidiary). This project was approved for the first investment policy under Decision No. 413/UBND-KT
dated Feb. 26, 2021 and approved for the second adjustment of the investment policy under Decision No. 1045/QD-UBND
dated Jun. 14, 2024 issued by the People's Committee of Tra Vinh province. On Feb. 28, 2025, the Company was granted the
right to use the sea area by the People's Committee of Tra Vinh province under Decision No. 392/QD-UBND. The balance
as at Dec. 31, 2024 includes the cost of purchasing equipment of VND 96,500,048,779: capitalized interest expense is VND
341,351,748 and other costs related to the project. As at Jan. 01, 2024 and Dec. 31, 2024, all assets and legal documents of
the Dong Thanh | Wind Power Plant project have been used to secure the loan of Aurai Wind Energy JSC (see note V.19).
At the time of preparing this report, the project implementation progress is behind the approved schedule. However, the
General Director assesses that the future realizable net value of the project is not impaired.

(iii) This is capital construction in progress of the Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Plant Project invested by Dong Thanh 2 Wind
Power Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary). This project has been approved for investment policy under Decision No. 1377/UBND - KT
dated Apr. 15, 2021 and approved for the third adjustment of investment policy under Decision No. 1046/QD - UBND dated
Jun. 14, 2024 issued by the People's Committee of Tra Vinh province. On Jun. 27, 2024, the Company was assigned the right
to use the sea area by the People's Committee of Tra Vinh province under Decision No. 1089/QD - UBND. The balance as at
Dec. 31, 2024 includes consulting and management costs with a total value of VND 19,392,886,700; capitalized interest
expense is VND 47,523,146 and other costs related to the project. As at Jan. 01, 2024 and Dec. 31, 2024, all assets and legal
documents of the Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Plant project have been used to secure the loan of Aurai Wind Energy JSC (see
note V.19),

(iv} As at December 31, 2024, these projects are collateral for the loans stated in Note V.19,

7. Financial lease assets (Transportation & facilities)

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

Historical cost 1,232,472,730 - - 1,232,472.,730
Accumulated depreciation 273,882,826 234,756,708 - 508,639,534

~ Net book value 958,589,904 723,833,196

Lease renewal or right to purchase the asset: The Group will purchase the asset at a purchase price equal to the remaining
value of the asset after the lease term expires, which is VND 1,500,000.

8. Intangible assets (Project investment license)

i -

My e =7

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Historical cost 420,826,943,652 - - 420,826,943.652
Accumulated amortization 17,002,191,366 10,191,114,178 - 27,193,305,544
Net book value 403,824,752,286 393,633,638,108

The carrying value of intangible fixed assets pledged/mortgaged as loan security: none.
The original costs of intangible fixed assets—fully depreciated but still in use: none.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this repori Page 33
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form B 09 - DN/JHN

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND =
4
12. Prepaid expenses Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01,2024 T
a. Short-term 9,777,249,322 8,452,493,099 {[
Tools and supplies awaiting for allocation 92,440,495 2,897,350,657 F
Insurance awaiting for allocation 5,524,094,555 . ’,
Bond service expenses 1,310,630,136 - ?;
Credit agency expenses 918,010,264 -
Other expenses awaiting for allocation 1,932,073,872 5.555,142.442
b. Long-term 69,713,347,344 61,131,031,953

Insurance awaiting for allocation

[.and clearance expenses

Prepaid land rental awaiting for allocation
Tools and supplies awaiting for allocation

Other expenses awaiting for allocation
Total

13. Deferred income tax assets and Deferred income tax liabilities

a. Deferred income tax assets incurred from temporarily deductible differences:

- Unrealized gains related to sales within the Group
Total
b. Deferred income tax liabilities incurred from temporarily deductible
differences:
- Difference due to revaluation of fair value of subsidiaries at acquisition date

Total

14. Good-will
Goodwill arising from the Group's acquisition of subsidiaries

22,026,573,464
21,709,892.529
15,897,204,314
248,299,614
9,831,377,423

24.,437,955,782
1,987.337,285
16,571,227,515
246,079,025
17,888,432,346

79,490,596,666

69,583,525,052

Dec. 31, 2024

8,180.006.533

Jan, 01, 2024

8.558.,450,265

8,180,006,533 8,558,450,265
78.722,404,687 79,360.028.944
78,722,404,687 79,360,028,944
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan., 01, 2024

57,310,211,948

65,663,068.,024

15. Trade payables Dec. 31,2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Amount to be able Amount to be able
Value Value
to pay to pay
a. Short-term 1,386,183,332,109 1,386,183,332,109 1,223,109,690,620 1,223,109,690,620
Local suppliers
Payables to related parties
(see Note VIIL3) 168,926,356,294 168,926,356,294 408,897.925,713 408.897.925,713
Powerchina Viet Nam Co.,
Ltd. 415,475,212.904 415,475.212,904 423,223,088,490 423,223,088.,490
Representative office of
Powerchina Jiangxin Electric
Power Engineering Co., Lid.
in Vietnam 215,160,297,021 215,160,297,021 218.930.683,449 218,930,683.449
Mr. Ngo Duc Thang 324,900,000,000 324.900,000,000 - -
Others 209.899.651,550 209,899.651,550 126,191,503,298 126.191.503,298

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Page 39



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form B 09 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND
=
¢

15. Trade payables (cont.) Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024 N

bl
Value Amount to be able Value Amount to be able
to pay to pay
Foreign suppliers 7
(USD 2,028,172.67) 2
Powerchina Jiangxin Electric
Power Engineering Co., Ltd. 51,821,814,340 51,821,814,340 45.866,489,670 45.860.489.670

16. Short-term accrued expenses

b. Long-term 369,157,333,980 369,157,333,980 250,864,145,998 250,864,145,998
Payables to related parties
(see Note VIII.3) 315,236,163,767 315,236,163,767 250.864,145,998 250,864,145.998
Others 53.921,170,213 53,921,170,213 . -
Total (*) 1,755,340,666,089 1,755,340,666,089 1,473,973,836,618 1,473,973,836,618

(*) In which, the balance payable to suppliers includes:

+ The overdue balance of payables to suppliers is VND 112,067,620,862. The Company always believes in its ability to

arrange funding sources to ensure the ability to pay these payables to suppliers.
+ The balance payable to suppliers without a response confirmation letter is VND 467,527,982,231.

+ The long-term supplier payable balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 belongs to Tracodi Construction Group Corporation and the

Group has reached an agreement to extend the debt until Dec. 31, 2026.

Accrued payable to Tracodi Construction Group Corporation (Related party -

Dec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

See note VIII.3c) (*) 10,312,035,073

Borrowing interest, bond interest expense 190.219,378,124 206,566,337,977
Temporary increase in fixed assets costs - 34,829,238.883
BCC interest expense 52,087.671.233 8.140.986,800
Others 32.072.199,384 15,645,155,223
Total 284,691,283,814 265,181,718,883

(*) These are the construction costs of the Krong Pa 2 Solar Power Plant project according to construction contracts No.
01/2022/HDMB/TN_TCD dated Jan. 21, 2022 and No. 01/2021/TN-TOJI/HDXD dated Dec. 20, 2021 and attached

appendices.

17. Other payables Dee. 31, 2024
a. Short-term 182,785,872,612
Union dues and mandatory insurance payments 104,200,522

Payable to related parties (Note VIIIL.3)
- Investment coaperation contract payable
- BCC interest expense, borvowing interest

- Late payment interest

34,147,137,521
5,475,500,000
24,534,406,150
4,137,231,371

Jan. 01, 2024
189,309,039,132
87,924,202
48,790,037,226
16,935,500,000
31,834,537,226

BCC interest expense, interest payable to third parties 119,711,890,324 126,789.868,665
Dividends payable 21,459.901,512 -
Other payables 7.362,742,733 13,641.209,039
b. Long-term 856,000,000,000 856,000,000,000
Investment cooperation contract payable (i) 856,000,000,000 §56.000.000,000
Total (*)  1,038,785,872,612 1,045,309,039,132
(*) Of which, the other payable balance without a response confirmation letter is VND 974,721,322,617.
The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 40
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Unit: VND

19. Borrowings and financial lease liabilities

a. Short-term

(i) - Borrowings from related
parties (see note VIIIL.3b)

(i) - Borrow from other entities
- Borrow from Sembcorp

(ii) Energy Viet Nam Project |
Pte Ltd.

- Joint Stock Commercial
Bank for Foreign Trade of
Vietnam

- Current portion of long

term borrowings

b Borrowings

+ Borrowing costs

+ Financial lease liabilities
b. Long-term

(iii) - Borrowed from Bamboo
Capital Group (Related
Party)

(iv) - Borrowed from Sembcorp
Energy Vietnam Co., Ltd.

(v) - Borrow from banks
- Borrowing costs

(vi) - Bonds
+ Face value of issued bonds
+ Bond issuing expense

(vii) - Financial lease liabilities
- Current portion of long
term borrowings
+ Borrowings
+ Borrowing costs
+ Financial lease liabilities
Total

Dec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

Value

Amount to be able

Value

Amount to be able

{E]

to pay fo pay -
1,335,445,307,414 1,335,445,307.414 1,363,368,058,090 1,363,368,058,090 /Q
9,832,810,099 0.832,810,099 33,604,000,000 33.,604,000,000

117,020,026,000

689,877,000,000

518,715,471,315
520,569,126,815
(2,124,799,500)
271,144,000
4,742,790,904,521

100,000.000,000

20,500,970,868
4,811,596,364,488
(22,133,247,520)

357,000,000,000
(6,000,000,000)
542,288,000

(320,569,126,815)
2,124,799, 500
(271,144,000)

117,020,026,000

689,877.000,000

518,715.471,315
320,569,126,815
(2,124,799,500)
271,144,000
4,742,790,904,521

100,000,000,000

20,500,970,868
4,811,596,364,488
(22.133,247,520)

357,000,000,000
(6.000,000,000)
542,288,000

(520,569,126,815)
2,124,799,500
(271,144,000)

174,503,500,000

659.475,000,000

50,000,000,000

445,785,558,090
447,639,213,590

(2,124,799,500)
271,144,000
5,034,922,124,978

500,000,000,000

4,504,152,289,628
(24,258,038,560)

500,000,000,000

813,432,000

(447,639,213, 590)
2,124,799 500
(271,144,000)

174,503,500,000 \

%

¥
o

e
659,475,000,000

50,000,000,000

445,785,558.,090
447,639,213,590
(2,124,799, 500)
271,144,000
5,034,922,124,978

500,000,000,000

4,504,152,289,628
(24.258,038,560)

500,000,000,000

813,432,000

(447,639,213,590)
2,124,799 500
(271, 144,000)

6,078,236,211,935

6,078,236,211,935

6,398,290,183,068

6,398,290,183,068

Detail of borrowings and financial lease liabilities is as follows:

(i) Short-term unsecured borrowings from companies according to specific borrowing contracts. Borrowing term is 12 months.
Interest rates range from 0% - 12.05%/year. Borrowing purpose is to supplement working capital.

(ii) Short-term borrowing from Sembcorp Energy Vietnam Project 1 Pte Ltd under a specific borrowing agreement. The
borrowing term is 12 months. The purpose of the borrowing is to supplement working capital. Interest rate is 9%/year. The
balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is USD 27,000,000.00 equivalent to VND 689,877,000,000.

The noltes io the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Page 43



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form B 09 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND
19. Borrowings and financial lease liabilities (cont.)
Collateral for this borrowing includes:
N
ame of the guarantor Collsteral
company =
" Capital contribution to Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Co., Ltd.; =
IL‘-i

- Capital contribution to Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Co., Ltd.;
- All bank accounts of Aurai Wind Energy JSC at: Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank,
Orient Commercial Joint Stock Bank, Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and

Aurai Wind Energy JSC

Trade.

s = |
B=

o Q.
= —

Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power

- All assets and legal documents of Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Plant Project;

!

fi~={

G0, Lid,

- All bank deposit accounts at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power
Co., Ltd.

- All assets and legal documents of Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Plant Project;
- All bank deposit accounts at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

BCG Khai Long | Wind
Power JSC

- All assets and legal documents of the Khai Long Tourist Area Wind Power Plant Project

Phase 1;
- All bank deposit accounts at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

BCG Khai Long 2 Wind
Power JSC

- All assets and legal documents of Khai Long Wind Power Plant Project Phase 2;
- All bank deposit accounts at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

BCG Khai Long 3 Wind
Power ISC

- All assets and legal documents of Khai Long Wind Power Plant Project Phase 3;
- All bank deposit accounts at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

BCG Wind Soc Trang JSC

- All assets and legal documents of BCG Soc Trang 1 Wind Power Plant Project;
- Bank deposit accounts of BCG Wind Soc Trang Wind Power JSC at Nam A Commercial
Joint Stock Bank and Phuong Dong Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Bamboo Capital Group

Capital contribution to Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC; BCG - Bang Duong Energy
JSC.

BCG GAIA JSC

- Capital contribution to Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC and BCG - Bang Duong
Energy JSC;
- Accounts receivable, bank accounts, bank deposits and equipment.

BCG Energy JSC

Capital contribution to BCG GAIA JSC; Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC; BCG -
Bang Duong Energy JSC; Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Co., Ltd. and Dong Thanh 2 Wind

Power Co., Ltd.

Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong

Energy 1SC

Property rights arising from contracts and other movable assets.

BCG Bang Duong Energy
JSC

Property rights arising from contracts and other movable assets.

Mr, Nguyen Ho Nam

5 million shares in Bamboo Capital Group.

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan

- 22.500 shares at BCG GAIA J5C;
- 2.369 million shares at Bamboo Capital Group.

Ms. Hoang Thi Minh Chau

2.500 shares at BCG GAIA JSC.

(iiii) Long-term unsecured borrowing from Bamboo Capital Group according to each specific loan contract. Borrowing term
until Nov. 19, 2026. Borrowing purpose is to purchase, install equipment and construct wind power plant project. Interest rate

is 16%/vear.

The noies (o the consolidated financial siatements forin an integral part of this report Page 44



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

19. Borrowings and financial lease liabilities (cont.)

(iv) Long-term unsecured borrowing from Sembcorp Energy Vietnam Co., Ltd. for the purpose of supplementing the working
capital of BCG GAIA JSC (a subsidiary). The borrowing term is 02 years from the date of disbursement with the option to
repay the loan early when possible or exiend the maturity date until BCG GAIA JSC completes the repayment of outstanding =
debts and other conditions according to the debt restructuring proposal with DBS Bank Ltd., Singapore and Cilifford Capital =
Pte. Ltd. Interest rate is 9%/year. The balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 20,500,970,863.

(v) Details of long-term borrowings from barnks: 5
- Details of borrowings from Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade are as follows: iC

+ Investment project borrowing contract No. 79/2020/HDCVDADT/NHCT944-NLS dated Oct. 9, 2020 and the document f
amending and supplementing the investment project loan contract with a maximum total value of VND 2,623,000,000, 000 ¢
for the purpose of financing the construction investment of Phu My Solar Power Plant Project - Phase 1 and Phase 2. The o
term is 126 months from the date the borrower withdraws the first borrowing. Interest rate is determined by the savings
mobilization interest rate in VND plus a minimum margin of 4%/year. The collateral for the borrowing is the properly
attached to the land formed in the future and all real estate belonging to Phu My Solar Power Plant Phase 1 and Phase 2
(Note V.7); the right to claim debt arising from the Power Purchase and Sale contract between the Company and the Power
Purchase and Sale Company (Note V.2); all shares and related rights in the Company of Mr. Nguyen Van Luc, Mr. Bui
Thanh Lam, Leader Energy (Vietnam) Pte. Ltd. and BCG Energy JSC. The balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND

1,749,511,436,696, of which the long-term loan due is VND 272,950,000,000.

+ Investment project borrowing contract No. 97/2024/HDCVDADT/NHCT944-NLS dated Oct. 24, 2024 and contract |
appendix No. 97/2024-HDCVDADT-PLOI/NHCT944-NLS dated Oct. 25, 2024 for investment project loans with a !
maximum total value of VND 690,000,000,000 for the purpose of paying legal investment costs of Phu My Solar Power
Project Cluster - Phase 1. The term is 139 months from the date the Bank disburses the first borrowing. Inlerest rate is
determined by the savings mobilization interest rate in VND plus additional capital mobilization cosis and a mininum
margin of 2.8%/year. However, af the time of signing this contract, the borrower is enjoying a preferential interest rate of
6.3%/vear for VND borrowing for a maximum of 12 months from the first disbursement date. The collateral for the
borrowing is secured by collateral assets under the terms of other valid loan contracts. The borrowing balance as at Dec.
31, 2024 is VND 674,000,000,000, of which the long-term borrowing due for payment is VND 60,000,000,000.

- Borrowing from Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank under long-term borrowing contract No.
69/2020/HDTD/TTKHDNL MN2/01 dated Jan. 14, 2021. The term is until Jan. 15, 2036. Interest rate as at Dec. 31, 2024 is
9.75% - 10.05%/year. The purpose is to finance the investment costs of the Vneco Vinh Long Solar Power Plant Project. The
collateral for this borrowing is the property attached to the land formed in the future and the right to claim debt arising from the
power purchase contract. The balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 550,374,528,848, of which the long-term loan due for
payment is VND 47,858,654,686.

- Borrowing from Vietnam Maritime Commercial Joint Stock Bank under a specific credit contract. The term is until Feb. 1.
2028. Interest rate as at Dec. 31, 2024 is 10.5%/year (According to Official Dispatch No. 108/2022/CV-MSB dated Apr. 4,
2022, announcing the adjustment of interest rate to 7.3%/year until Apr. 4. 2025). The purpose is to finance the construction
cost of the Rooftop Solar Power Plant Project. The collateral for this borrowing is the rooftop solar power system of the
Subsidiary at Go Tay Supermarket, Tan Cang Long Binh ICD area, Long Binh ward, Bien Hoa city, Dong Nai province - at
the warehouse of Tan Vinh Cuu JSC, Long Binh, Bien Hoa, Dong Nai. The balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND
27.407.,407,352, of which the long-term borrowing due for payment is VND 8,888,888,904.

-~
a3

1

- Borrowing from Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank - Ben Thanh Branch under borrowing agreement No.
BEN/20226 dated Dec. 18, 2020 and BEN/20226-02 dated Dec. 21, 2020. The term is until Dec. 19, 2027. Interest rate is
13.8%/year. Borrowing purpose is to invest in solar power project. The collateral is the rooftop solar power system of
Vinamilk Quang Ngai 1 project. debt collection rights, guarantee of Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam (Former Chairman of the Company)
and all shares of the Company at Skylar JSC. The balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 10,338,523,142.

- Borrowing from DBS Bank Ltd, Singapore under a specific credit agreement. The borrowing term is until Jun. 30, 2035.
Interest rate is SOFR + 2.9%/year. The purpose of the borrowing is to finance projects, BCC contracts and business plans. The
balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is USD 70,445,950 equivalent to VND 1,799,964,468,450, of which the long-term borrowing due
is USD 5,121,975 equivalent to VND 130,871,583,225.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 43



BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES Form B 09 - DN/HN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND

19. Borrowings and financial lease liabilities (cont.)

20.

Collateral for this borrowing includes:

Name of the guarantor
company

Collateral

Capital contribution to BCG GAIA JSC; Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC and BCG -

BCY Brargy 150 Bang Duong Energy JSC.

- Capital contribution to Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC and BCG - Bang Duong
Energy ISC;

- All bank accounts at DBS Bank - Ho Chi Minh City Branch;

- All rights and benefits arising from the business cooperation contract.

BCG GAIA JSC

Capital contribution to Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC and BCG - Bang Duong

Bamboo Capital Group Energy JSC

- All bank accounts at DBS Bank - Ho Chi Minh City Branch;
- All real estate and personal property belonging to the project;
- All rights and interests arising from the project.

Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong
Energy JSC

- All bank accounts at DBS Bank - Ho Chi Minh City Branch;
- All real estate and personal property belonging to the project;
- All rights and interests arising from the project.

BCG Bang Duong Energy
IsC

Sembcopr Energy Vietnam

‘api ibuti BCG .
Project 1 Pte. Ltd. Capital contribution to GAIA JSC

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan and

Capital ibuti 7 GAIA ISC.
Ms. Hoang Thi Minh Chau Gl "

(vi) This is a bond issued by Thanh Nguyen Energy Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary - referred to as Thanh
Nguyen) in 2022 with a total face value of VND 500 billion. The representative owner of the bond is Tien Phong Securities
Joint Stock Company. The maturity date is Dec. 9, 2027. The purpose of issuance is to restructure Thanh Nguyen's debt. The
bond interest rate as at Dec. 31, 2024 is 13%/year. The secured assets include all property rights of the Krong Pa 2 project
owned by Thanh Nguyen; All capital contributions owned by capital contributors at Thanh Nguyen; Mortgage of 19,284,000
shares of Bamboo Capital Group Corporation (Stock code: BCG) owned by Vital Investments Group JSC (third party) and
BCG Energy JSC commits to unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee payment of all payment obligations arising from and
related to Thanh Nguyen's Bonds to the Bondholders in case Thanh Nguyen fails to perform or does not fully perform the
payment of such obligations. The balance bond balance as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 357 billion.

(vii) Financial leasing debt from Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade Financial Leasing Company, Ho
Chi Minh City Branch to purchase fixed assets under Financial Lease Contract No. 63.22.07/CTTC dated Oct. 25, 2022.
Interest rate is equal to the 12-month VND savings interest rate, interest payment method applied to individuals, announced by
Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade at the time of debt receipt plus a margin of 2.5%/year. The Company
has the right to repurchase the leased assets at a nominal price of VND 1,500,000 (Nov. 25, 2026). The outstanding financial
lease debt as at Dec. 31, 2024 is VND 542,288,000, of which the due financial lease debt is VIND 271,144,000.

Short-term unearned revenue Deec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Unrealized gains from capital transfer transactions 114,021,887,481 =

The noies (o the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 46
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

Form B 09 - DN/HN

Unit: VND'S
iy

21. Owners' Equity (cont.)

b. Owners' contributed capital in details % of shareholding
Bamboo Capital Group 47.71%
Ms. Le Thi Mai Loan 3.78%
Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen 2.88%
Other shareholders 45.63%
Total 100%

¢. Capital transactions with owners and
distribution

Owners' capital
At the beginning of the year
Contributed capital increased during the year
Contributed capital decreased during the year
At the end of the period

Dividends, profit distributed

d. Shares
Number of shares registered for issuance
Number of shares sold out
Ordinary share
Preferred share
Number of shares sold out to the public
Ordinary share
Preferred share
Number of shares repurchased
Ordinary share
Preferred share
Number of shares in circulation
Ordinary share
Preferred share
Par vaiue: VND/share

. 22, Off balance sheet items

Foreign currencies - USD

2
&

\

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024&
3,483,000,000,000 3,698,000,000,000
276,000,000,000 276,000,000,000
210,000,000,000 210,000,000,000
3,331,000,000,000 3,116.000,000,000
7,300,000,000,000 7,300,000,000,000

Year 2024 Year 2023

7,300,000,000,000

7,300,000,000,000

Dec. 31, 2024
730,000,000
730,000,000
730,000,000

730,000,000
730,000,000

730,000,000
730,000,000

10,000

Dec. 31,2024
133,423.86

4,500,000,000,000
2,800,000,000,000

7,300,000,000,000

Jan. 01, 2024
730,000,000
730,000,000
730,000,000

730,000,000
730,000,000

10,000

Jan. 01, 2024
110,690.38

VL. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1. Total net revenue from sales and services
Revenue from service provided

Revenue from electricity sales
Total

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Year 2024
38,881,523.000
1,238,813,268,494

Year 2023
41,572.137.877
1,084,075,180,757

1,277,694,791,494

1,125,647,318,634
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Form B 09 - DN/HN

. Financial expenses
Borrowing, financial lease and bond interest expense
Provision for financial investments
Loss from realised foreign exchange differences
Loss from unrealised foreign exchange differences
Bond issuance costs
Business cooperalion expenses
Others

Total

. General and administration expenses
Salaries

Materials, office supplies
Depreciation

Taxes, fees and duties

Provision for doubtful debts

Cost of hired services

Allocation of goodwill

Other expenses paid by cash
Total

. Other income
Profit from bargain purchase
Receive compensation for construction delays
Proceeds from bank interest withdrawal (*)
Others

Total

664,893.719.014
§1,000,000,000
15,698.819.,702

114,526,492,271
(1,429,314,276)

100,236,024,108
16,011,866,212

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’;ﬁ
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VND/
M
2. Cost of sales Year 2024 Year 2023
Cost of service provided 26,719.449.964 40,778,056,087 \ﬁ
Cost of electricity sold 623,562,964,367 549,820,710,095 é
Total 650,282,414,331 590,598,766,182
. Financial income Year 2024 Year 2023
Interest on deposits, margin, bonds and loans 19,957,170,705 19,098,568,162
Gain from realised foreign exchange differences 34.217,169 4,760,339
Dividends . 6,860,000,000
Gain from disposal of investments in other entities 1,116,598,839 773,429,095
Business cooperation interest 608,657,547,992 717.336,171,144
Other incomes - 640,000
Total 629,765,534,705 744,073,568,740
Year 2024 Year 2023

967.,422,134,827

2,911,585,405
99,735,147.130
19.202,027,497
200,832,509,921
55,174,818,519

990,937,607,031 1,345,278,223,299
Year 2024 Year 2023
21.318,765,481 17.606,666,059
781,056,226 1.661,712,676
963.288.724 2.735.908,664

13.312.826.309
473,628.514,506

6,212.209,880

24,035,076.285 27,716,157,855

8.352.856.,076 8,352,856,076

4,477.561,506 12,279,093,297

546,869,945,113 70,352,394,627

Year 2024 Year 2023

- 5,236,596,097

- 22,563,013,699
38,997.,389,604 -

4,975.054,174 21,317,065,617

43,972,443,838 49,116,675,413

(*) This is the amount received from Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank according to Notice No. 202402.01/TB/TPB-
IBCS dated Feb. 29, 2024 regarding the Bank's agreement to reduce interest for the Company on the interest collected in 2023.

The notes o the consolidated financial statements form an imtegral part of this report
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7. Other expenses Year 2024 Year 2023
Tax related costs 463,244,420 6,657,334,948 JI
168,388,864 T

Loss from disposal of fixed assets

Late payment interest costs

Cost of contract violation penalty, compensation
Sponsorship and charity costs

Others

Total

8. Costs of production and trading by factors
Raw materials cost
Labor cost
Fixed asset depreciation, goodwill allocation
Cost of hired services
Other expenses paid by cash
Total

9, Current income tax expense

Current corporate income tax expense incurred at companies:

BCG Energy JISC

Violet Solar JSC

Orchid Solar JSC

Herb Solar JISC

BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC
Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC
Gia Huy Electric Development JSC
BCG Wind Soc Trang JSC

BCG Vinh Long JSC

Skylar JSC

Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Co., Ltd.
Clean Energy Vision Development ISC

Total

10. Basis earnings per share
Accounting profit after corporate income tax
In which:
Interest of non-controlling shareholders
Praofit after tax of parent company's shareholders
Adjustment to decrease

Bonus and welfare fund

Profit or loss attributable to shareholders who owned ordinary shares of

the parent company (*)
Average ordinary shares outstanding during the period

Earnings per share

The noies to the consolidated finaneial siaiements form an integral part of this report

4,141,081,371
3.145,120,199

6,764,629,630

2,530,730,067 3,247.387.384

17,213,194,551 9,904,722,332
Year 2024 Year 2023

1,494.751,670 37.323,555,133

42 816,039,566 3,309,578,011

543,504,481,312 496,312,234,192

112,630,346,529 83,737,494,290

23,078,225,861 40,288,018,297

723,523,844,938 660,970,879,923
Year 2024 Year 2023

- 3,600,000

- 23,872,994

- 120,521,756

1,362,336,064

149,907,303
016,451.525

207,361,482 565,089,010
496,979,793 19,193,232
10,192,880,423 1,232,661,502
184,340,009 417,493,987
- 912,003,926
11,392,511,542 -
170,321,186 2,247.580,278
24,006,730,499 6,608,375,513
Year 2024 Year 2023
(766,019,596,581) (152,720,426,064)

(34,978,254,028)
(731,041,342,553)

(116,808,939,470)
(35,911,486,594)

(731,041,342,553) (35,911,486,594)
730,000,000 463,416,322
(1,001) (77)
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10. Basis earnings per share (cont.)

(*): The bonus and welfare fund has not been deducted from the profit attributable to the shareholders holding oridinary shares
as statutorily required. Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share of 2024 will be adjusted and represented after
the plan of profit distribution is approved by the annual Shareholders’ meeting.

11. Diluted earnings per share Year 2024 Year 2023
Profit or loss allocated to shareholders owning ordinary shares (731,041,342,553) (35.911,486,594)
Profit or loss allocated to shareholders owning ordinary shares after
adjusting dilution factors (731,041,342,553) (35,911,486,594)
Average outstanding ordinary shares in the period 730,000,000 463,416,322
Average outstanding ordinary shares in the period after adjusting
dilution factors 730,000,000 463,416,322
Diluted earnings per share (1,001) (77)

Al s Z=-m b

VII. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

1. Borrowing amount in the period Year 2024 Year 2023
- Proceeds from the borrowing under normal agreement 1,369,600,772,347 1,950,048,347,604
2. Payment for principal debts Year 2024 Year 2023
- Payment for principal debts under normal agreement 1,787,713,134.569 2,317,691,398,652
- Payment for principal bonds - 2.289,000.000,000
- Payment for principal lease 271,144,000 271,144,000

VIIL. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Contingent liabilities, commitments and other financial information

a. Contingent liabilities

- The Group has land lease contracts directly from the State to serve the Group's BCG Bang Duong and GAIA solar power
projects. Based on the terms of these land lease contracts, the settlement of assets attached to the land after the end of the lease
contracts is carried out in accordance with the provisions of current law. Accordingly, at the date of preparing these
consolidated financial statements, the Group assesses that the obligation to restore and clear the land related to the Group's
BCG Bang Duong and GAIA solar power projects is uncertain because the Group has not determined whether the Group will
bear the costs of dismantling assets attached to the land as required by the State or whether the State will reclaim the land
along with assets attached to the land and have the right to use or transfer it to the next lessee.

- The Group has rooftop lease contracts to serve the Group's rooftop solar power projects. Pursuant to the terms of this rooftop
lease contract, after the end of the lease contract, the Group will be obliged to reclaim the rooftop solar power system, restore
and return the installation area to the condition stated in the initial site handover minutes if the roof lessor does not buy back
the system. At the date of this consolidated financial statement, the Group assesses that the obligation to restore and release the
roof related to the rooftop solar power projects is uncertain.

- Pursuant to Articles 77 and 78 of Decree 08/2022/ND-CP guiding the Law on Environmental Protection (“Decree”) issued
by the Government on Jan. 10, 2022, Gia Huy Power Development JSC and Clean Energy Vision Development JSC (2
subsidiaries) are responsible for recycling solar panels used in solar power projects when their useful life has expired. Pursuant
to the guidance of this Decree. recycling can be carried out by self-recycling, hiring a recycling unit to recycle, authorizing an
intermediary organization, or a combination of these forms. As of the date of this financial report, these two subsidiaries have
not yet determined the recycling method or calculated the cost of recycling due to the lack of specific guidance.

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 31
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a. Contingent liabilities (cont.)

- The Group has received Decision No. 639/QD-UBND dated Mar. 31, 2022 (“Decision™) on the assignment of the right to
use the sea area directly from the People's Committee of Tra Vinh province to implement the Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Plant
investment project. The term of assignment of the right to use the sea area is from the effective date of the Decision (Mar. 31,
2022) 1o Feb. 26, 2071. According to the terms of the Decision, the Group is obliged to implement measures to protect the
marine environment, restore and improve the marine environment when the term of use of the sea area expires. However, at the
date of these financial statements, the Group has not completed most of the Dong Thanh | Wind Power Plant Project, so the
cost of restoring and improving the handed over sea area has not been determined. Therefore, the Group has not yet set aside
any costs related to the restoration and improvement of the handed-over sea area.

- The Group has received Decision No. 1089/QD UBND dated Jun. 27, 2024 (“Decision”) on the assignment of the right to
use the sea area directly from the People's Committee of Tra Vinh province to implement the Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Plant
investment project. The term of assignment of the right to use the sea area is from the effective date of the Decision (Jun. 27,
2024) to Apr. 15, 2071. According to the terms of the Decision, the Group is obliged to implement measures to protect the
marine environment, restore and improve the marine environment when the term of use of the sea area expires. However, at the
date of preparing these financial statements, the Company has not completed most of the Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Plant
Project, so the cost of restoring and improving the handed over sea area has not been determined. Therefore, the Group has not
set aside any expenses related to the restoration and improvement of the handed over sea area.

LUt S e

b. Commitments
- The Group commits to contribute sufficient capital to the Company's associates by 2025,

- The Group ensures to continue to fulfill the commitments signed in contracts with partners.

- BCG Energy JSC commits to unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee payment of all payment obligations arising from and
related to the Bonds of Thanh Nguyen Energy Investment and Development Co., Ltd. to the Bondholders in case the Company
fails to perform or does not fully perform the payment of such obligations (Note No. V.19 - Borrowings and financial leasing
debts).

- Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Co., Ldt. ("Dong Thanh 1") and Dong Thanh 2 Wind Power Company Limited ("Dong Thanh
2") have mortgaged all assets of Dong Thanh 1, 2 Wind Power Plant Project and all bank accounts of Dong Thanh 1, Dong
Thanh 2 at Nam A Commercial Joint Stock Bank to guarantee the loan of Aurai Wind Energy JSC (subsidiary) from
Sembcorp Energy Vietnam Project [ Pte Ltd. (Note No. V.19 - Borrowings and financial lease liabilities).

- Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam (Former Chairman of the Company) has agreed to guarantee with all of his assets, unconditionally and
irrevocably guarantee the performance of all current and future obligations arising from loan contract No. BEN/20226 dated
Dec, 18, 2020 at Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Bank - Ben Thanh Branch under guarantee contract No.
01/HDBL/VPBANK-01 dated Dec. 18, 2020 of the Group (see also note No. V.19).

- Capital commitments: commitments on fixed asset creation targets that have been signed contracts at the end of the fiscal
year but have not been accounted for in the financial statements are as follows:
Year 2024 Year 2023

Factory, machinery and equipment 4,608,812,555,081 4,343.262,131.401

¢. Other financial information

- The Group was notified by the competent authority of the decision to initiate a criminal case and the decision to prosecute
Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam (former Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bamboo Capital Group Joint Stock Company (investor)
and the Group) and Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen (member of the Group's Controlling Board since March 29, 2024) on Feb. 28,
2025. On Mar. 11, 2025, the Group received the resignation of many senior personnel as explained in Section I - Report of
the Board of Management. The Board of Management assessed that the above incident did not affect the Group's operations.
The Group assessed that all production and business activities were still operating normally.

- Regarding the electricity purchase price enjoyed under Decision 13/2020/QD-TTg dated Apr. 6, 2020 for Phu My Solar
Power Plant projects and VNECO Vinh Long Solar Power Plant projects with commercial operation date before Dec. 31, 2020,

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 52
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¢. Other financial information (cont.)

+ Clean Energy Vision Development JSC (a subsidiary) signed a power purchase agreement with Viemam Electricity
Group for the Phu My I Solar Power Plant - Phase I, Phu My 2, Phu My 3 - Phase 1 projects, enjoying an electricity
purchase price of 7.09 UScent/kWh (FIT price) within 20 years according to Decision 1 3/2020/0D-TTe for grid-connected
solar power projects that have been approved by competent authorities for investment policy decisions before Nov. 23,
2019 and have a commercial operation date ("COD") of the project or a part of the project in the period from Jul. 1, 2019
to Dec. 31, 2020,

+ BCG Vinh Long JSC (a subsidiary) signed a power purchase agreement with Vietnam Electricity Group. for the VNECO
Vinh Long Solar Power Plant project, enjoying an electricity purchase price of 7.09 US cents/kWh (FIT price) within 20)
years according to Decision 13/2020/0D-TTg for grid-connected solar power projects that have been approved by
competent authorities for investment policy decisions before Nov. 23, 2019 and have a commercial operation date ("COD")
of the project in the period from Jul. 1, 2019 to Dec. 31, 2020.

+ According to the inspection conclusion No. 1027/KL-TTCP dated Apr. 28, 2023 of the Government Inspeciorate,

referring to the review and consideration of the enjoyment of the FIT price mechanism for projects that do not have a
"Document of acceptance resulls” at the time of COD.

+ However, at the time of preparing these financial statements, there have been no legal documents issued by competent
authorities regarding changes in the conditions for enjoying the FIT price mechanism under Decision No. 13/2020/0D-
TTg. Therefore, Clean Energy Vision Development Joint Stock Company continues to record revenue under the power
purchase contract signed with Vietam Electricity Group and has been settled for revenue until the end of 2024.

Up to the time of reporting, the Group has no contingent liabilities, commitments and other financial information occurred
since the ending date of the fiscal year that requires any adjustments or disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

. Post balance sheet events
For the 83.10 MWp capacity of the Phu My 1 Solar Power Project - Phase 2, Clean Energy Vision Development Joint Stock
Company signed an amendment and supplement contract No. 05 of the Phu My 1 Solar Power Plant Power Purchase
Agreement with Vietnam Electricity Group on February 6, 2025. Accordingly, the electricity purchase price at the electricity
delivery point is 1.183.65 (VND/kWh) and is applied for 20 years from the Commercial Operation Date of this Power Plant
(20 years from May 30, 2023);

For the 31.10 MWp capacity of the Phu My 3 Solar Power Project - Phase 2, Clean Energy Vision Development Joint Stock
Company signed an amendment and supplement contract No. 05 of the Phu My 3 Solar Power Plant Power Purchase
Agreement with Vietnam Electricity Group on Apr. 25, 2025. Accordingly, the official electricity purchase price at the
electricity delivery point is 1,178.12 (VND/kWh) and is applied for 20 years from the Commercial Operation Date of this
Power Plant (20 years from May 30, 2023).

On May 23, 2025, the Company received Decision No. 661/QD-SGDHN from the Hanoi Stock Exchange on placing it on the
restricted trading list. Accordingly, the Company's BGE shares were placed on the restricted trading list from May 29, 2025
because of the delay in submitting the audited financial statements for 2024 more than 45 days from the deadline for

information disclosure in accordance with regulations.

Out of the matters as mentioned above, there are no significant events occurred since the period ended that need to be adjusted
or noted in the financial statements,

. Related party information

a. Related parties Relationship
Bamboo Capital Group Investor
(i) Mr. Vu Ngoc Tien Investor
Herb Solar JSC Indirect subsidiary
Orchid Solar JSC Indirect subsidiary
Violet Solar JSC Indirect subsidiary

The nates to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report Page 53
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3. Related party information (cont.)

a. Related parties Relationship
Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy ISC Indirect subsidiary
BCG Bang Duong Energy JSC Indirect subsidiary
Gia Huy Electric Development JSC Indirect subsidiary
(ii) Greensky Infinitive JSC Indirect subsidiary
(iii) Cosmos Solar JSC Indirect subsidiary
Skylight Power Co., Ltd. Investment into associates
Hanwha BCGE O&M Co., Ltd. Investment into associates
BCG - SP Greensky ISC Investment into associates
Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development JSC Investment into associates
TSN Hon Dat JSC Investment into associates
TSN Hue JSC Investment into associates
TSN Long An JSC Investment into associates
TSN Ha Nam JSC Investment into associates
Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC (formerly known as Industrial
Development and Transport [nvestment JSC) Same owner
Vietnam Taxi Company Same owner
Casa Marina Resort Tourism JSC Same owner
AAA Insurance Corporation Same owner
Nguyen Hoang Development JSC Same owner
Conbap Ecological Tourist Co., Ltd. Same owner
BCG Land JSC Same owner
BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power JSC Same legal representative
BCG Khai Long 2 Wind Power JSC Same legal representative
BCG Khai Long 3 Wind Power ISC Same legal representative
(i) Mega Solar JSC Same legal representative
(i) E Power 1 JSC Same legal representative
Tulip Solar Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of associates
Mr. Ng Wee Siong, Leonard Chairman (Appointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
Chairman (Disappointed since Mar. 29,
Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam 2024)
Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Deputy Chairman
Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien Deputy Chairman
Deputy Chairman (Appointed since Mar. 29,
Mr. Neuyen Trung Truc 2024)
Independent member (Appointed since Mar.
Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh 29,2024)
Mr. Le Thanh Tung Member
Ms. Nguyen Thi Loan Member
Mr. Dong Hai Ha Head supervision board
Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong Deputy Head supervision board
Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen Member (Appointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
Mr. Tan Bo Quan Andy Member (Disappointed since Mar. 29, 2024)
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3. Related party information (cont.)

a. Related parties
Mr. Pham Minh Tuan
Ms. Pham Nguyen Ngoc Thuong
Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam
Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet
Mr. Pham Le Quang

Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh

Ms. Vu Van Ngoc Nicki

(i) Mr. Nguyen Van Luc

In which:

Relationship
General Director
Deputy General Director

(i) These individuals and companies are no longer related parties of the Company as at Dec. 31, 2024.
(ii) Greensky Infinitive JSC is no longer a related party of the Company from Sep. 05, 2024.
(iii) Cosmos Solar Joint Stock Company was officially dissolved on Feb. 20, 2024,

b. Key transactions with related parties

Bamboo Capital Group

Borrowing

Repay the prinicipal borrowing
Borrowing expense

Interest paid

Services received

Skylight Power Co., Ltd.

Loan granted

Loan principal collection

Interest inconie from Loan receivables
Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development JSC
Contribute capital

Loan granted

Interest income from Loan receivables
Interest collected

BCC contribution

Collection of BCC

Service Provider

TSN Long An JSC

BCC contribution

TSN Hue JSC

BCC contribution

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Year 2024

162,000,000,000
562,000,000,000
86,224,932,166
§8,808,493,.810
12,170,000,000

541,000,000
541,000,000
57,168,742

112,908,000,000
7,397,128,000
33,886,029
53,886,029
1,884,674,000,000
200,000,000,000
20,671,752,000

334,384,000,000

127,500,000,000

Deputy General Director (Appointed since
Mar. 20, 2024)

Deputy General Director (Appointed since
Sep. 01, 2024)
Deputy General Director (Appointed since
Nov. 15, 2024)

Deputy General Director (Appointed since
Sep. 01, 2024)
Deputy General Director (Disappointed since
Sep. 01, 2024)

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Subsidiary

Year 2023

74,298,630,139

12,265,000,000
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b. Key transactions with related parties (cont.):
Year 2024 Year 2023

TSN Hon Dat JSC
BCC contribution 302.142,000,000 -
Vietnam Taxi Company
Services received 136,395,277 117,519,389
Casa Marina Resort Tourism JSC
Services received 213,259,953 192 271,465

AAA Insurance Corporation
Services received

Nguyen Hoang Development JSC
Loan granted

Interest income fram Loan receivables
Conbap Ecological Tourist Co., Ltd.
Repay the principal borrowing
Borrowing expense

Interest paid

BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power JSC
Loan granted

Loan principal collection

Interest income from Loan receivables
BCC partnership interest

Service Provider

BCG Khai Long 2 Wind Power JSC
Loan granted

Loan principal collection

Interest income from Loan receivables
BCC contribution

Collection of BCC

Interest income from BCC

Recovering profits from a BCC
Service Provider

BCG Khai Long 3 Wind Power JSC
Loan granted

Loan principal collection

Interest income from Loan receivables
Service Provider

E Power 1 JSC

Loan granted

Interest income from Loan receivables

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

8509747852

54,147,944

268, 744,000,000
135,000,000
6,790,593,452
274,734,951,103
4,645,400,000

230,225,000,000
37,650,000,000
3,175,439,069
55,243,780,000
166,301,000,000
12,843,410,528
2,550,000,000

1,690,000,000
6,000,000
256,143,452
2,550,000,000

14,978,934,659

600,000,000
11,095,890

20,000,000,000
30,684,932

7,410,022,927
30,000,000
333,252,170
418,691,264,655
4,834,780,000

825,000,000

68,883,285

200,946,082
2,550,000,000
7,529,000,000
4,746,000,000

112,431,949

2,550,000,000

169,000,000
1,725,533
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b. Key transactions with related parties (cont.):

Year 2024 Year 2023

Mega Solar JSC
Interest income from Loan receivables - 3,149,998
- 52,000,000,000

Principal repayment
Interest paid

Interest income from BCC

Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC

Late payment interesi

Pay depasit

Services received

BCG Land JSC

Services received

Collection of BCC

Recovering profits from a BCC

Interest income from BCC

Hanwha BCGE O&M Co., Ltd.

Services received

Service Provider

Dividends distributed

BCG - SP Greensky JSC
Services received

Borrowing

Borrowing expense

Contribute capital

Tulip Solar Co., Ltd.
Services received

Disposal, sales

Repay the principal borrowing
Borrowing expense

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan
Borrowing

Repay the principal borrowing
Mr. Vu Ngoc Tien

Capital increase

Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien
Borrowing

Repay the principal borrowing

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this repori

4,137,231,371
39,000,000,000
13,519,217,338

300,000,000
10,000,000,000
2,385.150,687
181,150,685

36,665,243,720
546,000,000
10,665,242,000

7,918371,000

68,186,298
155,500,000,000

902,036,722
29,474,724,567
5,201,189,901
806,229,473

4,355,171,232
17,901,861,765

300,000,000

1,102,000,001

34,633,869,870
490,000,000
6,860,000,000

8,800,535,000

800,000,000
38,936,984

1,209.890,000

10,522,347,604
10,522,347.604

30.000.000,000

450,000,000
450,000,000
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c. As at December 31, 2024, balances with related parties:

Short-term trade receivables
Hanwha BCGE Q&M Co., Ltd.

Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development JSC
BCG - SP Greensky JSC

BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power JSC
BCG Khai Long 2 Wind Power JSC
BCG Khai Long 3 Wind Power JSC
Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien

Total

Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC

Short-term loan receivables

BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power JSC

Nguyen Hoang Development JSC

Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development JSC
TSN Long An JSC

Nguyen Hoang Development JSC

Mega Solar JSC

E Power 1 ISC

Total

Long-term trade receivables
BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power JSC
BCG Khai Long 2 Wind Power JSC
BCG Khai Long 3 Wind Power JSC
Total

Other short-term receivables
Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC
BCG Khai Long 1 Wind Power JSC
BCG Khai Long 2 Wind Power JSC
BCG Khai Long 3 Wind Power JSC
Nguyen Hoang Development JSC
Skylight Power Co., Ltd.

E Power 1 JSC

Mega Solar JSC

BCG Land ISC

Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet

Mr. Pham Le Quang

Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development JSC
TSN Long An JSC

TSN Hue JSC

TSN Hon Dat ISC

Total

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Dec. 31, 2024
589,680,000
7.605,152,000
1,402,893,000
10,349,058,000
5,763.,000,000

Jan. 01, 2024

529,000,000

766,923,000
5,686,526,000
3,009,000,000

5,463,000,000 2,709,000,000
- 402,398.480
31,172,783,000 13,102,847,480
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
20.171,356,008 53,734,324 ,321
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
275,969,022,927 -
600,000,000 =
3,000,000,000 -
53,220,000,000 -
600,000,000
1,035,000,000
- 107,403,483.975
332,789,022,927 109,038,483,975

Dec. 31, 2024

193,400,000,000

Jan. 01, 2024
7.360,022,927
2,513,000,000

4,197.000.,000 825,000,000
197,597,000,000 10,698,022,927
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
39,959,440,985 2,012,419,386

1,684,847,651.792
9,576,459,564
365,530,196
65,243,834
57,168,743

61,141.612,674
800,000,000
1.689,687,000,000
334,384,000,000
127,500,000,000
302,142,000,000

2,380,468,707,237
128,945,829,367
109,386,744
11,095,890
7,520,837,090
806,375,740,967
2,204,000,002

4,250,526,107,788

3,327,648,022,683
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¢. As at December 31, 2024, balances with related parties:

Other long-term receivables
BCG Khai Long 2 Wind Power JSC

BCG Land JSC
Total

Short-term trade payables
Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC
Bamboo Capital Group

Vietnam Taxi Company

Hanwha BCGE O&M Co., Lid.
BCG Land JSC

Casa Marina Resort Tourism JSC
AAA Insurance Corporation

Mr. Vu Ngoce Tien

Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien

Mr. Nguyen Van Luc

Total

Long-term trade payables
Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC
Mr. Nguyen Van Luc

Total

Short-term accrued expenses
Tracodi Construction Holdings ISC
Total

Other short-term payables
Tracodi Construction Holdings JSC
Mega Solar JSC

Tulip Solar Co., Ltd.

Bamboo Capital Group

BCG - SP Greensky JSC

Total

Short-term borrowings and financial lease liabilities
BCG - SP Greensky JSC

Tulip Solar Co., Ltd.

E Power 1 JSC

Mega Solar JSC
Total

Long-term borrowings and financial lease liabilities

Bamboo Capital Group
Total

The notes to the cansolidated financial statemenis form an integral part of this report

Dec. 31, 2024
11,381,000,000

Jan. 01, 2024

10,000.000.,000

11,381,000,000

10,000,000,000

Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
140,760,995,974 333,331,978,689
2,298,200,000 5,888,067,374
3,720,500 631,000
25,824 702,120 14,074,175,632
27,000,000 54,000,000
2,627,000 -
9,110,700 463,424,658
- 42,381,360
3.043,267,000
- 52.000,000,000
168,926,356,294 408,897,925,713
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

315,236,163,767

145,236,163,767
105,627,982,231

315,236,163,767 250,864,145,998
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
10,312,035,073 -
10,312,035,073 -
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
4,137,231,371 -
- 15,362.534,246
1,079,426,701 1,760,141,336
28.823.356,167 31,406,917.811
107,123,282 260,443,833
34,147,137,521 48,790,037,226
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
800,000,000 800,000,000
9,032,810,099 14,234.000,000

3.,070.000,000
15,500,000,000

9,832,810,099 33,604,000,000
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
100,000,000,000 500,000,000,000
100,000,000,000 500,000,000,000
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d. The Board of Directors and Management's income Year 2024 Year 2023
Expenses for key management personnel 6,139,014,667 3,052,037,246
In which:
108,500,000

- Ms. Hoang Thi Minh Chau
- Mr. Dong Hai Ha

- Mr. Neuyen Viet Cuong

- Mr. Pham Minh Tuan

- Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam

- Mr. Hoang Trung thanh

- M5, Vu Van Ngoc Nicki

- Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet

- Ms. Pham Nguyen Ngoc Thuong
- Mr. Pham Le Quang

- Mr. Pham Dang Khoa
Total

4. Going-concern activity: The Group will continue to operate in the future.

Prepared by

P

Nguyen Thi Thuy Dung

The notes to the consolidated financial statements form an integral part of this report

Chief Accountant

et

Luu Khanh Truong

504,000,000
93,800,000
1,360,400,000
975,005,143
890,691,429
302,800,000
327,700,000
1,381,172,381

268,833,333")
91,700,000, >
S
790,900,000] «
I

432,360,000

1,038, 710,000

£ A4 4N
o
. .
< T
)
fl_ e
!

303,445,714 E\

- 301,033,9
6,139,014,667 3,052,037,246 |
7

/

Ho Chi Minh City, July 18, 2023

HE
\-\ BCG E
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